
Jo Miller
Chief Executive

Issued on: Monday, 4 December 2017

Governance Officer for this Amber Torrington
meeting: 01302 737462

To all Members of the

CABINET

AGENDA

Notice is given that a Meeting of the Cabinet is to be
 held as follows:

 
VENUE    Room 7a and b, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU
DATE:     Tuesday, 12th December, 2017
TIME:      10.00 am

ITEMS
1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be 
excluded from the meeting. 

3. Public Questions and Statements.
(A period not exceeding 20 minutes for questions and 
statements from members of the public and Elected Members to 
the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones. Questions/Statements 
should relate specifically to an item of business on the agenda 
and be limited to a maximum of 100 words. As stated within 
Executive Procedure Rule 3.3 each person will be allowed to 
submit one question/statement per meeting. A question may 
only be asked if notice has been given by delivering it in writing 
or by e-mail to the Governance Team no later than 5.00 p.m. on 
Thursday, 7th December 2017. Each question or statement must 
give the name and address of the person submitting it. 
Questions/Statements should be sent to the Governance Team, 
Floor 2, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU, or by email 
to Democratic.Services@doncaster.gov.uk).

Public Document Pack

mailto:Democratic.Services@doncaster.gov.uk


4. Declarations of Interest, if any. 

5. Decision Record Forms from the meeting held on 28th November, 
2017 for noting (previously circulated). 

A.     Reports where the public and press may not be excluded

Rule 15 Urgent Decision
6. Superfast Broadband Phase II Proposal. (Rule 15 Decision which by 

reasons of Urgency has not been included on the Forward Plan).
1 - 10

Key Decisions
7. To Approve the Draft Learning Provision Organisation Strategy for 

Doncaster. 
11 - 68

For information
8. PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE REPORT - Yorkshire Purchasing 

Organisation. 
69 - 76

Cabinet Members

Chair
Ros Jones, Mayor of Doncaster 

Portfolio Holder for:
Vice-Chair
Councillor Glyn Jones, Deputy Mayor Housing and Equalities 
Councillor Nigel Ball Public Health, Leisure and Culture
Councillor Joe Blackham Highways, Street Scene and Trading Services
Councillor Rachael Blake Adult Social Care
Councillor Nuala Fennelly Children, Young People and Schools
Councillor Chris McGuinness Communities, Voluntary Sector and the Environment
Councillor Bill Mordue Business, Skills and Economic Development
Councillor Jane Nightingale Customer and Corporate Services



 
 

                    
 

 
Corporate Report Format 
 
To the Mayor and Cabinet 
 
Superfast Broadband Phase II Proposal 
 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision 

Cllr Jane Nightingale All Rule 15 Urgent Decision 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. Superfast Broadband is currently being rolled out across South Yorkshire 

with a national government target of 95% coverage by 31st December 2017 
and a further 3% to deliver thereafter taking that up to 98% coverage. This 
leaves 2% of South Yorkshire not covered at all, this is made up of mostly 
rural or new properties, estimated to be 23,000 premises, of which 6,749 
(29-30%) premises are reported to be in Doncaster. If we do nothing, these 
rural communities and businesses could be left behind our more populated 
areas by not having access to what has become an essential utility for 
every household. 
 

2. The purpose of this report is to gain approval from Doncaster Council as 
part of a South Yorkshire wide initiative to close that 2% gap and tender for 
a further rollout of Superfast Broadband (to be known as Phase II). In order 
for Doncaster and the other South Yorkshire authorities to benefit from the 
opportunity, each of them are required to agree to release match funding to 
take advantage of the further government BDUK scheme.     

 
3. Several ways of funding this have been explored to achieve a cost neutral 

solution and this report includes what is felt to be the best way to achieve 
this and is therefore now being pursued urgently by each of the authorities. 
We must confirm agreement of our match funding arrangements in order to 
take advantage of the scheme and initiate the tender process in the 
required timescales also included within this report. The total match funding 
being pursued is £3.5 million for South Yorkshire with Doncaster’s element 
based on the percentage of population being £780k.  

 
REASONS FOR URGENCY 
 

4. This decision is being taken in accordance with Rule 15 of the Council’s 
Access to Information Procedure Rules. It has not been possible to give 
the 28 days’ notice of this decision on the Forward Plan because there is a 
deadline to agree match funding that must be met if we are to take 
advantage of a further central government scheme. 

 
EXEMPT REPORT 
 
5.  Not applicable.  

 
12 December 2017 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6.



 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.  It is recommended that Cabinet: 

 Support the proposal to further extend Superfast Broadband across South 
Yorkshire.   

 Agree to the inclusion of £780k into the Council’s Finance and Corporate 
Services Capital Programme order to support the proposal – this release is 
dependent upon the other South Yorkshire authorities also receiving 
approval to contribute to their share of the total match funding required. 

 Agree that savings on the PTE levy or other revenue savings are used to 
support the borrowing costs to fund the capital contribution required i.e. will 
be cost neutral for the Council.  

 
WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 
 
7.   A phase 2 rollout will ensure the availability of superfast broadband wherever   

technically possible to the parts of Doncaster not in scope of the phase 1 
rollout of 98% including rural areas and new properties aiming for 100% 
coverage. Access to broadband is now an essential utility for most of the 
population.  

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Overview 
 
8.  In March 2017 an Open Market Review (OMR) was carried out to assess 

the potential to further extend Superfast Broadband (SFB) coverage 
across South Yorkshire.  Whilst Phase I of the current Superfast 
Broadband Programme provides a solution that will help to deliver 98% 
Superfast Broadband coverage this falls short of both the Sheffield City 
Region (SCR) SEP’s ambition and South Yorkshire Demand Stimulation 
strategy of achieving 100% coverage. 

 
9.  The OMR indicates that over 23,000 premises in South Yorkshire will 

remain without SFB after Phase I of the current Superfast Broadband 
project has been completed.  The analysis of the South Yorkshire 
intervention area is ongoing so the final number of these premises will be 
concluded as soon as possible. These numbers are currently estimated at: 
  Doncaster – 6,749 premises 
  Barnsley – 4,081 premises 
  Rotherham – 3,160 premises 
  Sheffield - 9,010 premises 

      This will be a mix of residential and commercial properties and the areas 
for Doncaster are represented by the white areas in appendix 1. 

 
10.  Phase II will seek to make fibre broadband available to as close to 100% 

coverage of South Yorkshire as technically possible.  The premises 
identified in the recent OMR include rural areas as expected but also 
include a high proportion of new residential and business sites which have 
been developed since the last OMR was conducted in 2014.   

 
11. Based on the extent of coverage identified in the OMR and currently 

deployment costs it is estimated that in the region of £4m will be required 

Page 2



to fund Phase II - with a further £300k being required to fund the 
management and running costs of delivering the scheme.  Funding of 
£800k has been identified from phase 1 and SCRIF, leaving a funding 
requirement of £3.5m. 

 
12. It is important to note that BDUK (i.e. the Government Department dealing 

with Broadband) require all funding to be fully confirmed prior to the 
commencement of any formal procurement exercise.   

 
13. The actual cost of the deployment will not however be known until bids 

have been received, therefore the value of the procurement will be capped 
at an upper limit in order to ensure Phase II remains within its available 
funding envelope.     

 
Procurement Timetable 
 
14. The table below indicates the tight timescales for the procurement driven 

by the need to launch the Invitation to Tender, before the results of the 
OMR expire. 

 

Activity Deadline 

Prepare ITT documentation and 
Contract Schedules (usually 10-12 
weeks) 

8th December 2017 

Supplier Engagement 1st December 2017 

Create Data Room 8th December 2017 

BDUK Assurance checkpoint – ready 
to procure 

8th December 2017 

Launch ITT 15th December 2017 

Bidder responses received 23rd February 2018 

Bid evaluation 9th March 2018 

Contract  Award 13th April 2018 

Contract Mobilisation June 2018 onwards for 3 months 

 
Other Funding Options for the Proposal 
 
15. Following extensive dialogue with SCR, and despite a recent 

prioritisation/refresh exercise, it has been established that there are no 
additional funds available within SCRIF to support Phase II due to over-
programming.  SCRIF was used to fund the South Yorkshire authority’s 
phase 1 contributions.   

 
16.   A further option to fund the scheme from de-prioritised LGF schemes has 

also been considered.  It was felt however that there is currently no 
guarantee of a SCRIF underspend and that the availability of any funding 
from this source is unlikely to become available within the timescales 
required for Phase II.    

   
17. In addition, the local authorities for various reasons, primarily affordability 

and existing budget pressures, have indicated that they are unable to 
support Phase II capital spend.    

 
18. What has however been established is that there remains £3.5m in 

Page 3



unutilised National Productivity Investment Funding (NPIF) that could 
legitimately be utilised to support Phase II. 

 
19. NPIF represents funding for infrastructure provided by government to 

support major additional spending in areas that are key to boosting 
productivity: transport, digital communications, research and development 
(R&D), and housing. 

 
20. Given the above, SCR have proposed that they could utilise £3.5m in NPIF 

to reduce borrowing costs against specific capital schemes. The 
subsequent savings arising from the replacement of borrowing with the 
£3.5m would be passed onto each authority in the form of a levy reduction. 

 
21. Other funding options are being considered as an alternative to the NPIF 

funding that will still result in savings from the PTE levy. 
 
22. Each authority is now in the process of seeking the appropriate approvals 

to move this option forward. 
 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
23. The following options have been considered: 
 

Option 1 -  Do not agree to a phase II. 
 

Option 2 – Agree to a phase II rollout match funded by releasing £780k capital 
(Doncaster’s required contribution based on percentage of population within 
South Yorkshire) to be paid back by utilising on-going savings or the annual 
PTE levy saving to pay for borrowing over 25 years achieving a cost neutral 
initiative. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
24. Option 2 is the recommended option for the following reasons: 

 Over 23,000 premises across South Yorkshire will not be left behind and will 
have access to broadband speeds above 30mbps. In particular, it is 
estimated 6749 of these will be in Doncaster; 

 BDUK are pressing ahead to ensure the UK is one of the best connected 
countries and the opportunity to progress a further procurement may not 
arise for some time or even at all; 

 Leaving these areas behind will have a negative impact on the digital and 
wider economy of South Yorkshire compared to the rest of the UK;  

 The region having as much connectivity as technically possible brings 
significant economic opportunities for residents, business and the public 
sector whilst ensuring South Yorkshire does not fall behind other regions; 
and 

 It is one of Doncaster Council’s priorities for the borough to be as digitally 
enabled as possible and heavily compliments other initiatives such as the 
provision of free Doncaster Town Centre Wi-Fi to citizens and visitors and 
full digital access to all services for those who wish to interact digitally.   

 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 
 
25.  
 
 

 Outcomes Implications  
 All people in Doncaster benefit 

from a thriving and resilient 
economy. 
 

 Mayoral Priority: Creating Jobs 
and Housing 

 Mayoral Priority: Be a strong 
voice for our veterans 

 Mayoral Priority: Protecting 
Doncaster’s vital services 

 

Access to superfast broadband by 
citizens and businesses is one of 
the key foundations to achieving a 
thriving and resilient economy.  

 People live safe, healthy, active 
and independent lives. 
 

 Mayoral Priority: Safeguarding 
our Communities   

 Mayoral Priority: Bringing 
down the cost of living 
 

Digital inclusion contributes to 
financial and social inclusion. 

 People in Doncaster benefit from 
a high quality built and natural 
environment. 
 

 Mayoral Priority: Creating Jobs 
and Housing 

 Mayoral Priority: Safeguarding 
our Communities  

 Mayoral Priority: Bringing 
down the cost of living 

 

 

 All families thrive. 
 

 Mayoral Priority: Protecting 
Doncaster’s vital services 

 

 

 Council services are modern and 
value for money. 
 

Increased citizen access to digital 
Council services via an increased 
broadband provision will contribute 
to the reduced cost of service 
delivery by the Council. This is the 
cheapest way to access and deliver 
services. It will also bring increased 
provision to harder to reach rural 
communities. 

 Working with our partners we will 
provide strong leadership and 
governance. 
 

 

 

Page 5



 
RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

 
26. The main risk associated with this report is that if all the other South Yorkshire 

authorities do not gain agreement; Doncaster will lose the ability to benefit from 
taking advantage of the BDUK scheme.  

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
27.  The Council may enter into an arrangement with other authorities to extend the  

Superfast Broadband project utilising its powers under Section 1 of the     
Localism Act 2011 (the so called general power of competence).  

 
 28. The proposed extension is not covered by the original contract and therefore 

an EU compliant tender process will be required to identify a provider who can 
provide services to the new areas.  

 
29.  As agreed under phase 1, as lead Authority, only Barnsley Council will enter 

into a contract with the successful bidder. Barnsley, Doncaster, Rotherham and 
Sheffield Councils have entered into an Intra-authority agreement which gives 
Barnsley comfort that they will receive the necessary cooperation and funding 
from the other  Councils in order to meet their contractual commitments to the 
provider and the  funder BDUK. The intra-authority agreement will require 
revising to take account of the new phase. This agreement will be subject to 
further negotiation between the 4 authorities and will require specific legal 
advice. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
30. Doncaster’s contribution to phase 2 will be capped at £780k and be funded via 

previously approved Prudential Borrowing from the Investment and 
Modernisation Fund.  This contribution will be included in the Finance and 
Corporate Services capital programme for 2019/20.  The network will be 
owned by BT and have a useful life of twenty-five years. 

 
31. Phase 2 relies on all the four South Yorkshire authorities making their 

contributions.  Should one not agree to contribute, there will be a funding gap 
and so this has interpreted as Doncaster would not have to provide its 
contribution. 

 
32. The annual cost of the borrowing has been estimated at £52k which could be 

funded by savings from the PTE levy or other on-going savings, which will be 
identified prior to borrowing being undertaken.  A budget for these costs will be 
moved to Treasury Management from 2019/20. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS  

 
33. There are no human resource implications associated with this report.  
 

TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS  
 
34. There are no Council technology implications associated with this report.  
 
 

Page 6



 
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
35. This initiative aims to ensure no-one is left behind with regard to the provision 

of superfast broadband in Doncaster.  
 

CONSULTATION 
 
36. Colleagues from Sheffield City Region and other South Yorkshire authorities 

have worked in partnership to propose this initiative.    
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

37.  Appendix 1 – Rural Areas in Scope  
 

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS 
 
38.  Julie Grant, Assistant Director of Customers, Digital & ICT  

Tel 01302 862496 Email: Julie.grant@doncaster.gov.uk 
 
Steve Mawson, Assistant Director of Finance 
Tel: 01302 737650  Email: steve.mawson@doncaster.gov.uk 
 

Simon Wiles Director of Finance & Corporate Services  

Page 7

mailto:Julie.grant@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:steve.mawson@doncaster.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – White Rural Areas in Scope 

 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

  12 December 2017 

                       
 

To the Mayor and Members of the  
Cabinet 
 
TO APPROVE THE DRAFT LEARNING PROVISION ORGANISATION STRATEGY FOR 
DONCASTER 
 

Relevant Cabinet Member(s) Wards Affected Key Decision 

Councillor Nuala Fennelly,  
Cabinet Member for Children, Young 
People and Schools 

All Yes 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. The Learning Provision Organisation Strategy sets out the future Learning 

Landscape for Doncaster and thus has a significant impact in all wards. The 
Strategy will be the focal point for the development of proposals for expenditure of 
significant amounts of capital funding. 
 
The Strategy will ensure that: 

 We meet the demand for appropriate and varied learning provision in a range 
of settings over the next five years 

 A framework is in place for planning and for generating the necessary 
resources to ensure the commissioning of high quality learning settings, 

 We provide a coherent and connected response to growth and diversity in 
Doncaster, 

 There are sufficient places to meet the needs of learners with individual 
needs, including those with Statements of Special Educational Need or 
Education, Health and Care Plan, and those who have been excluded from 
school.  

 
EXEMPT REPORT 
 
2.     This is not an exempt report. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3. The Mayor and Members of Cabinet are asked to: 

 
a) approve the Learning Provision Organisation Strategy for Doncaster   
 
b) agree to delegate authority to the Director of People for Learning and 

Opportunities:  Children and Young People / Adults, Health and Wellbeing 
Directorate to oversee and ensure the effective delivery of the Learning 
Provision Organisation Strategy. This will be undertaken in consultation with 
the Learning Provision Organisation Board.  

 

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 
 
4.    Local council’s play the key role in the organisation of learning provision for 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7.



 

children and young people. A co-ordinated approach to the commissioning of 
learning places will ensure that all citizens benefit from improved outcomes and 
experiences in Early Years, Schools, and post 16 Settings. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
5.     The proposal is to approve the New Strategy for the Organisation of Learning 

Provision in Doncaster. 
 
6. The Strategy: 
 

a) Captures the opportunities and challenges the Council works with in a mixed 
economy, multi provider infrastructure in meeting the demand for effective 
learning provision in a range of settings in the future 

b) Provides a framework for planning and generating the necessary resources to 
ensure that we meet the requirement to commission high quality learning 
settings 

c) Enables a coherent and connected response to growth and diversity in 
Doncaster 

d) Enables the secure planning to ensure that there are sufficient places to meet 
the needs of all learners, including those with SEND and those who have been 
excluded from school. 
 

7.    The Strategy supports and sits within Doncaster’s Strategic Vision and associated 
plans. 

 
8.     The Strategy sets out the main challenges that Doncaster faces in meeting demand 

for learning provision over the next 3 – 5 years and the way that the Council 
proposes to meet this need with high quality learning provision in response to local 
demographic pressures and demand for learning places. 

 
9. By providing the policy and strategic framework for consultation with sponsors and 

potential learning providers the strategy will inform the commissioning of Early 
years provision, school places, and post 16 development and training and hence 
improve educational outcomes and aspirations in Doncaster. 

 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
10.   See Section 11 below 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 
 
11.   It is essential that a Strategy is in place and no other option has been considered 

 
IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 
 
12.    The impact of the Strategy is as follows: 
 

 Outcomes Implications  
 All people in Doncaster benefit 

from a thriving and resilient 
economy. 

 Mayoral Priority: Creating Jobs 
and Housing 

 Mayoral Priority: Be a strong 

Effective organisation of learning 
provision provides the infrastructure for 
improved education and skills for all 
people. 

 

Page 12



 

voice for our veterans 

 Mayoral Priority: Protecting 
Doncaster’s vital services 

 People live safe, healthy, active 
and independent lives. 

 Mayoral Priority: Safeguarding 
our Communities   

 Mayoral Priority: Bringing 
down the cost of living 

Improved learning outcomes will 
enable more people to pursue safe, 
healthy, active and independent lives. 

 People in Doncaster benefit from 
a high quality built and natural 
environment. 

 Mayoral Priority: Creating Jobs 
and Housing 

 Mayoral Priority: Safeguarding 
our Communities  

 Mayoral Priority: Bringing 
down the cost of living 

The proposed strategy will inform 
investment in the development of high 
quality learning settings through the 
associated capital strategy 

 All families thrive. 

 Mayoral Priority: Protecting 
Doncaster’s vital services 

Young people of Doncaster will be 
provided with high quality, appropriate 
provision to meet their needs within 
Doncaster. 

 Council services are modern and 
value for money. 
 

The Strategy will provide a context 
within which there will be opportunities 
to access to funding from the DfE for 
some of the learning provision. 

 Working with our partners we will 
provide strong leadership and 
governance. 

The Strategy provides firm leadership 
and governance in the area of Early 
Years, School, and Post 16 Learning 
Provision. 

 
RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
13.  Should the Council not provide a clear Strategy for the Organisation of Learning 

Provision there is the risk that Learning Provision will emerge in a piecemeal and 
disconnected fashion led by potential alternative providers.  

 
14. The Council has the responsibility to ensure that every child has a school place. 

The Strategy provides the vision and methodology for ensuring that the Council 
can fulfil this obligation. 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
15. The Authority has school place planning duties under the Education Act 1996. This 

duty includes: 
 

 promoting high standards of education and fair access to education; 

 securing sufficient schools in the area; and 

 considering the need to secure provision for children with special education 
needs.  
 

The Strategy will assist in ensuring that these responsibilities will be effectively 
managed and that any potential risks are mitigated. 

 
 

Page 13



 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
16.    Capital 
  
        As part of the Councils capital budget setting process analysis has been 

undertaken of the Learning and Opportunities Children and Young People 
(LOCYP) estimated capital expenditure and funding options. The summary of the 
capital budget model is presented in the table below.  The strategy also sets out 
the funding options available for Pupil Place Planning and the current Council 
policy is to ring-fence these available resources to LOCYP need. 

 
17. The capital budget model includes assumptions of known on-going commitments 

for schools condition, other early help and short breaks and estimated new school 
places from census data forecasts and local plan / housing developments. 

 
18. The model also includes assumptions on academy conversions and the 

consequent transfer of grant funding from the Council to academies direct, 
however the pace of academy conversion will mean that the model may require 
updating to present the increased reduction in the Schools Conditions Allocations 
for maintained schools.  

 
19.  The model includes assumptions on contributions from schools and includes 

prudent S106 contributions from developers. More S106 money may be available 
as and when signed agreements are in place and when developments happen. 

 

LOCYP Budget Plan 2017/18 
£000 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

2020/21 
£000 

2021/22 
£000 

2022/23 
£000 

Balance B/F 8,785 10,749 10,295 3,881 2,037 393 

Annual DfE Allocation Basic 
Need, Maintenance, S106 
and Contributions 

10,746 6,426 1,867 4,186 4,186 4,186 

TOTAL Funding Available 19,531 17,175 12,161 8,067 6,223 4,579 

Spend Commitments 
Maintenance 

3,029 3,230 3,030 3,030 2,830 2,830 

Spend  
Commitments Other 

3,456 350 350 350 350 350 

Spend Commitments School 
Places 

2,297 3,300 4,900 2,650 2,650 400 

Net Balance C/f (+surplus/-
deficit) 

10,749 10,295 3,881 2,037 393 999 

 
20. The table above shows that in 2021-22 spending commitments almost match the 

resources available however it is extremely likely based on previous years spend 
that the estimated costs for schemes will increase.  

 
21. The aim overall remains to balance spend against available LOCYP funding. On-

going the strategy will be reviewed and performance measured as part of the 
Directorate’s Learning Provision & Organisation Board meetings with the capital 
programme updated accordingly.  

 
22. At the Learning Provision & Organisation Board (LPOB) meeting scheduled for 9th 

November reports relating to capital condition and school roofs are being 
submitted for approval for indicative work to take place during 2018-19 totalling 

Page 14



 

£3.3m. The approved amount will be used within this report to Cabinet on 28th 
November 2017 and is currently Schools Condition £2.6m and School Roofs 
£0.7m. 

 
23. These allocations are currently accounted for within the figures shown in the table 

above at paragraph 19. Any changes will be incorporated into the figures above 
following approval at LPOB and subsequently the 18-19 budget setting report that 
is due to be considered at Full Council on 5th March 2018. 

 
Revenue 
 
24. The local authority must determine a budget share for all schools and academies, 

funded from the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), in accordance with the School 
and Early Years Finance Regulations.  For any new schools opening in their area 
there would be no actual pupil numbers as at the October census for the 
subsequent year’s schools formula calculation (i.e. from the date of the school’s 
opening), therefore an estimate of the pupil numbers to attend the new school 
should be included in the budget share calculation for the new school. 

 
25. Funding for significant pupil growth is currently retained centrally from the 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), as a growth fund before the schools funding 
formula is calculated, as permitted and set out in the School and Early Years 
Finance Regulations (Schedule 2, Part 2).  The growth fund was set up from 
2014/15 with agreement of Schools Forum on criteria for allocation, and the total 
sum top-sliced from Schools Block DSG for this purpose in 2017/18 was £370k. 
The criteria for allocation include funding for the provision of an extra class, an 
increase in admission numbers and an agreed pre-opening cost allowance for 
new schools (all of which must be in order to meet basic need as agreed with the 
local authority). 

 
26. In terms of DSG contributing towards capital spend, the School Funding Reform 

arrangements for 2013/14 set out that revenue funding to cover costs of capital 
expenditure could not be centrally retained, therefore funding from DSG revenue 
is not now possible without the specific agreement of the Secretary of State. 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
27.  The Strategy is a significant programme of change, with significant HR implications 

associated with the increasing diversity of education provision – the continuing 
expansion of academies and free schools mirroring a continuing diminution in the 
number of employees working in maintained community schools with Doncaster 
Council as their employer. Related to this is the further development of the local 
authority as an enabler and broker rather than a direct provider of services. It is 
essential that staff are appropriately engaged in this transformation, and are 
equipped with the skills to make it a success. A particular challenge that schools 
and academies will need to address is in ensuring that the best talent can be 
attracted to work in Doncaster and be retained.   

 
TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS 
 
28. There are no direct technology implications at this stage.  Any requirements for 

new, enhanced or replacement technology to support the delivery of the Learning 
Provision Strategy would need to be considered by the ICT Governance Board 
(IGB) in line with the agreed ICT governance processes. 

 

Page 15



 

  
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
29.  The Strategy is intended to provide equal opportunities for all children, pupils and 

students to access appropriate and effective learning provision which 
demonstrates that we value our young people and provide them with a learning 
environment that will meet their needs. 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
30.   Discussion have been held with colleagues within Finance, Property and 

Construction Services, Planning, Housing, Regeneration and Environment and 
Asset Board regarding the need for a Strategy and its proposed content. 

 
Primary, Secondary, and SEND, Headteachers have been consulted either 
individually or through consultative groups. Presentations have been made at and 
feedback gathered from two Governor Forums.  

 
31. A very helpful and positive Consultation / Engagement session was held with the 

Doncaster Youth Council on 30 October 2017. Key issues arising from the 
discussion have already been included in the Strategy. 
 

32.   Everyone consulted was very positive regarding the development of the Strategy. 
        They welcomed the fact that there would be a clear statement of principles for the  
        Organisation of Learning Provision to ensure that the Council’s response to future   
        population growth was well managed and sensitive to local needs. 
 
33.   Consultees welcomed the fact that there would be a clear and transparent strategy   
        within which the Council would be fulfilling its responsibility to commission  
        Early Years, School, and post 16 provision in a coherent manner so that initial  
        placements will be sound, there will be continuity in learning, and outcomes will   
        improve. 
 

 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS 
 
Neil McAllister, School Organisation Manager Learning and Opportunities: CYP 
Telephone: 01302 735283 
Email: neil.mcallister@doncaster.gov.uk 
 
Harry Darby, Programme Manager Learning and Opportunities: CYP 
Email: harry.darby@doncaster.gov.uk 
 
 

Damian Allen, Director of People 
Learning and Opportunities: Children and Young People/Adults, Health and 

Wellbeing Directorates 

Page 16

mailto:neil.mcallister@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:harry.darby@doncaster.gov.uk


 

  December 2017 

 

Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy 

 

  

P
age 17



 

1 | P a g e  
 

The Organisation of Learning Provision in Doncaster 

Table of Contents 
 

1. The Strategy ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

2. The National Social Economic Context ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

3. The Local Social Economic Response ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.1 Strategic Vision ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.2 The Corporate Plan................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 5 

4. The National Educational and Young People’s Context ............................................................................................................................................................... 7 

4.1 National Pupil Projection Results ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

4.2 Legislation affecting Children and Young People ................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

4.2i Early Years ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 7 

4.2ii Schools ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 8 

4.2iii 14-19 and beyond............................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

5. The Local Education and Young People’s Context ..................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

5.1 Children and Young People’s Plan 2017 -2020: ................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

6. Demand and Growth .................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 11 

6.1 Responsibilities ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

6.2 Doncaster’s Population ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ 13 

6.3 Housing ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 14 

6.4 Business ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 16 

7. Skills Development ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

7.1 Education and Skills Commission: ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 17 

P
age 18



 

2 | P a g e  
 

8. Improving Outcomes for Children and Young People ................................................................................................................................................................ 18 

8.1 Environments for Effective T&L ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

8.2 Local Educational Landscape ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 19 

8.3 School Improvement ............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 19 

8.3i Doncaster’s Vision: All Schools aspiring to be Outstanding - No One Left Behind ............................................................................................................ 19 

8.3ii Doncaster Raising Aspiration and Achievement Plan ....................................................................................................................................................... 20 

9. Continuity and Progression ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

9.1 Resourcing Continuity and “all through” settings ................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

9.2 Early Year’s Platform ............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

9.3 Post 16 settings and provision ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 22 

9.4 SEND and Alternative Provision ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 23 

9.4i The Special Needs Review 2017 ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

9.4ii Behaviour Review 2017 ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

9.4iii Meeting SEND and Behavioural Needs ............................................................................................................................................................................ 25 

9.5 Introduction of Big Picture Learning as Alternative Provision ............................................................................................................................................. 25 

10. Assessment of Demand for Learning Places ............................................................................................................................................................................ 25 

10.1 Demographics .................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

10.2 Capacity and Projections .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

10.3 Pupil Place Planning ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

11. Local Area Plans........................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 32 

11a The Pyramid Key Data Report ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 33 

11b The Pyramid Places Proposal & Action Plan: ...................................................................................................................................................................... 34 

11c Local Area Plan ................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 35 

P
age 19



 

3 | P a g e  
 

12. Asset Management .................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 36 

12.1 Meeting maintenance priorities in existing schools .......................................................................................................................................................... 36 

12.2 Expansion and development of Learning Provision to meet needs identified in Local Plans ............................................................................................ 37 

12.3 Safeguarding....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 37 

12.4 Diversity and Equality ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 37 

13. Capital Funding ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 38 

13.1 Potential Sources of Capital Funds to meet Local Plans .................................................................................................................................................... 38 

13.2 Capital Allocations to Doncaster ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 40 

14. The Capital Programme ............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 41 

14.1 Current (to 2020/21) .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 41 

14.2 Medium Term (beyond 2020/21) ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 41 

15 Leadership and Governance ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 42 

15.1 The Learning Provision and Organisation Board ................................................................................................................................................................ 42 

15.2 Operational Leadership Arrangements .............................................................................................................................................................................. 44 

16. Maintenance and Review of the Strategy ................................................................................................................................................................................ 44 

16.1 Methodology ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 44 

 

  

P
age 20



 

4 | P a g e  
 

1. The Strategy 
 
This Strategy sets out key components and approaches contributing to the Learning Landscape in Doncaster by: 

 Capturing the main opportunities and challenges we work with in a mixed economy, multi-provider infrastructure in meeting the 
demand for appropriate and varied learning provision in a range of settings over the next five years.  

 Providing a framework for planning and generating the necessary resources to ensure that we meet the requirement to commission 
high quality learning settings and thus provide appropriate environments for effective learning over the next five years 

 Enabling a coherent and connected response to growth and diversity in Doncaster. 

 Ensuring there are sufficient places to meet the needs of learners with individual needs, including those with Statements of Special 
Educational Need or Education, Health and care Plan and those who have been excluded from school. 

The Strategy sets out the main challenges that Doncaster faces in meeting demand for learning provision over the next 3 - 5 years, as well 
as the key approaches through which the Council will meet this need with high quality learning provision in response to the ongoing 
analysis of local pressures and the changing demand for learning places. This will inform the commissioning of Early Years provision, 
school places, and post 16 development and training and hence help to improve educational outcomes and aspirations in Doncaster. 
More detail regarding the implementation of this strategy and Doncaster’s priorities for securing sufficient learning places for each locality 
is outlined in Sections 10 and 11. 

 
2. The National Social Economic Context 
 
Growth in the UK economy during the second half of 2016 continued unaffected by the EU referendum result. GDP increased by 0.6% in 
Q3 2016 compared with the previous quarter and by 0.7% in Q4 2016, supported by robust consumer spending. In 2016, GDP  growth 
was 1.8%. Growth in UK services has been strong since the recession, but manufacturing and construction have lagged behind. Growth in 
consumer spending and the services sector slowed contributing to weaker GDP growth. Considerable uncertainties remain regarding the 
anticipated scenarios around inflation with a range of predictions between 1% and 3% by mid-2018. 
Relatively strong post-Brexit trends in the services and manufacturing sectors have tailed off in the second half of 2017 and sterling 
remains weak against the dollar and euro, pushing up UK import prices and inflation. The Office of Budgetary Responsibility predicts that 
UK growth is likely to ease in 2017-18 due to Brexit-related uncertainty and slowing consumer spending growth. Growth in real earnings is 
projected to remain negative as inflation picks up and wage growth stays subdued. 
 
This means that it is very unlikely that there will be any significant increase in levels of public sector spending that will enable the planning 
of learning organisation provision to be boosted by additional funding sources from central government unless they are within in the 
pipelines already identified. 

P
age 21



 

5 | P a g e  
 

Concerns about the spending pressures faced by schools have been intensified by the planned introduction of a National Funding 
Formula in England. As with any change of this type there are expected to be winners and losers. Even after taking Government steps to 
limit the impact into account, some schools will face reductions in cash funding per pupil towards the end of this Parliament. 

 
3. The Local Social Economic Response 
 

3.1 Strategic Vision 
 

Doncaster Growing Together is the Mayor’s four-year strategic plan to improve the lives of Doncaster residents. It focuses on four key 
policy areas: Living, Working, Caring and Learning. There is a portfolio of eight programmes which have been agreed as partnership 
priorities over the forthcoming four years, which will deliver transformational change across many critical areas, including economic 
growth, the re-design of the behaviour system in schools and the implementation of the independent Education and Skills Commission 
recommendations. Each programme is currently being defined to ascertain the major reforms that will take place and when, what the 
benefits of these changes will be, and who will be responsible for the delivery them. The intended impact of the combination of the 
programmes is to reduce poverty, increase social mobility and foster community enterprise and resilience.  
Of particular relevance to this Plan is the Doncaster Learning theme and the Doncaster living theme, as these respond directly to the 
challenges we face in terms of housing and access to high quality education.  
 

3.2 The Corporate Plan  

Corporate Plan 
Strand  

Component Relevance of Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy 

 
Doncaster 
Learning 

Residents have the knowledge and skills for life, creativity, and 
employment 

All children are able to access high quality education 
Learning and creativity is supported through a whole person, 

whole life focus 
Residents have the skills, abilities and attributes that employers 

need 

 
The capacity, nature and effectiveness of environments 

within which effective learning takes place in Doncaster is 
clearly fundamental to success 

 
Doncaster 
Working 

Residents benefit form a thriving and resilient economy 
Existing businesses and new start-ups are supported to grow and 

create more quality jobs 
Residents are supported to access job opportunities and higher 

 
Effective Learning Provision will support excellence in  
training and learning and thus a resilient and positive 

economy 

P
age 22



 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
 
The Corporate Plan sets out annually the 4 ways in which Doncaster as a “Connected Council” is ready for the future. 
 
Clearly the effective Organisation of Learning Provision is fundamental to all 4 of the following strands of work and thus helps in ensuring 
the connectivity we expect by addressing at least one of the key objectives in all 4 strands. 
 

  

wages 
Doncaster’s social and economic assets are enhanced, 

supporting inclusive growth, increasing inward investment and 
attracting visitors 

 
Doncaster 

Caring 

Residents live safe, healthy, active and independent lives 
Care and support will harness community strengths to help 

residents maximise their independence, health and well-being 
Children and families access the right services and support at the 

earliest opportunity 
Children have the best start in life to achieve their full potential 

People in urgent need or crisis are healthy and safe 

 
Effective Learning generates an environment in which a 

knowledgeable, well-educated and aware set of residents 
can reach their full potential 

 
  Doncaster 

Living 
 

Doncaster is a modern, thriving and safe place to live in, work in, 
and visit 

Our built and natural environment is enhanced and protected 
Working with our partners we will reduce crime and anti-social 

behaviour 
Residents lead more active, healthy lives 

The number and quality of homes in Doncaster meet housing 
needs 

 
Effective Environments for Learning support, model, and 

encourage positive lifestyles  

P
age 23



 

7 | P a g e  
 

4. The National Educational and Young People’s Context 
 

4.1 National Pupil Projection Results 
 

In SFR 31/2017 13 July 2017, the DfE identify the future trends in pupil numbers nationally up to 2026 as follows: 
 

 Early Years: The population of under 5 year olds in state funded schools is projected to decrease slightly from 865,000 fte in 2017 
to 824,000 fte in 2019 before rising again slightly to 859,000 fte by 2026. The drop is mainly due to the number of births in 2013 
and 2014 feeding into this age group. The vast majority of both current and projected early years pupils are in primary schools. 
 

 State Funded Primary schools: There was a 1.8% increase in the population in state funded primary schools between 2016 and 
2017. The annual rate of increase is expected to fall gradually to 0% for 2020 and remain stable up to 2026. This is due to the drop 
in births in 2013 and 2014 and the expected recovery in birth rates in later years. There will be a 2.2% increase over the projection 
period. 
 

 State Funded Secondary schools: In 2017 the overall number of secondary school pupils increased for the second year, reaching 
2,797,000. This is primarily because increased births from 2002 onwards increased the numbers entering secondary schools at age 
11 compared with those leaving at 16. The rate of increase is expected to increase in 2018 to 2.4% and to remain high until towards 
the end of 2026. There is thus forecast to be a continuous increase in demand for secondary places until 2026 when the secondary 
population is predicted to be 3,331,000 – 534,000 higher than 2017. 

 
Migration and birth rate trends have been factored into the above calculations but the predictions acknowledge possible variations. 
Modelling indicates that the total number of children in the system is unlikely to vary from the predictions until 2022 since it takes several 
years for changes in birth rates to feed through and affect the size of the school aged population. 
 

4.2 Legislation affecting Children and Young People 
 
4.2i Early Years 

Related legislation is contained in The Childcare Acts 2006 and 2016. The Children and Families Act 2014 is also relevant. 
Councils have a duty to: 
 

 Ensure there are sufficient places for two year olds from disadvantaged and low income families to access 15 hours a week of 
funded early learning from the term after their second birthday 

P
age 24



 

8 | P a g e  
 

 Ensure there are sufficient places for all 3&4 year olds to access 15 hours a week of funded early learning from the term after their 
third birthday until the child reaches statutory school age or joins a Reception class 

 Ensure there are sufficient places for 3&4 year old children of working parents to access 30 hours of weekly early learning/childcare 
until such time as they go to school. 

 
It is important to note that while there is a duty to ensure sufficient early education places and encourage take up, there is no legal 
requirement for parents to make sure their children attend pre- statutory school age provision. 
 

4.2ii Schools 

It is a national requirement that parents, and carers, make arrangements for children to be educated from the first term that they begin as 
a five year old to the end of the academic year in which their sixteenth birthday falls. The Local Authority has to make sure there is school 
sufficient provision to meet this expectation. These school places must be available either in mainstream schools or in special schools or 
non-school forms of special provision where the individual needs of the child dictates. 
 
The Academies Act 2010 enabled all schools to become academies which are state funded schools independent of the local authority. 
The same legislation allowed the creation of “Free Schools” which are new state funded independent schools with the same legal status 
as academies. As at 1 October 2017 all of Doncaster’s secondary schools and 44% of primary schools have converted to academy status. 
 
This changing pattern means that there are a growing number of schools where the governing body is increasingly autonomous with 
regard to pupil places and admissions policy. The governing bodies of Voluntary Aided, Academy, and Free Schools are all responsible for 
determining the school’s admissions policy in line with the Admissions Code. Academy and Free Schools can independently consider 
expansion through amendment of their Academy Funding Agreement with the Secretary of State, whilst changes to school organisation 
legislation allow governing bodies of all types of maintained mainstream schools to expand without following a statutory process under the 
provisions of The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013. 
 
Significant changes were also embodied in the Education White paper: “Educational Excellence Everywhere” (March 2016) which set out 
plans up to 2021 that build upon and extend reforms to achieve educational excellence everywhere covering Teaching and leadership, 
Behaviour, Curriculum, Assessment and Qualifications, New Schools Systems, Accountability, School Improvement, and School Funding. 
 
These changes extend the government’s approach towards increasing autonomy through school led systems with every school an 
academy, empowered pupils, parents and communities, allowing schools to have more control when making decisions about their size 
and composition. 

P
age 25



 

9 | P a g e  
 

 
Local Authorities have become “Champions of Choice” and are required to work collaboratively with schools and other partners to 
commission a supply of school places in order to effectively discharge their duty to ensure that every child is allocated a place of learning. 
 
4.2iii 14-19 and beyond 

Councils are the lead strategic commissioners of 14-19 education and training, so the LA has the responsibility to ensure that sufficient 
education and training opportunities are accessible to all young people in the Borough aged 14 -19 and up to age 25 for those with 
learning difficulties and /or disabilities. 
 
The Academies Act 2010 makes provision for University Technical Colleges (UTCs) which are technical schools for 14-19 year olds, 
working alongside employers and universities. They operate as a type of academy within the terms of their funding agreement with the 
Secretary of State for Education. 
 

  

P
age 26



 

10 | P a g e  
 

5. The Local Education and Young People’s Context 
 

5.1 Children and Young People’s Plan 2017 -2020: 
 

The Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 2017 – 2020 sets out how the overall ambition for children and young people translates 
into action and how we can assess the impact we are having. The Plan has the following four priority themes that have been identified by 
young people across the partnership and the Strategy for Organisation of Learning Provision supports all four themes as follows: 
 

CYPP Theme CYPP Priorities Relevance to the Learning Provision and Organisation Strategy 

Safe Knowing that they can safely live 
and thrive in the borough. 

Students in safe and effective learning environments will develop increasing 
awareness and self confidence 

Healthy and Happy Better knowledge of services Students operating in effective and appropriate learning environments will be 
happy and will develop an appreciation of healthy ways of life 

Achievement Life skills – making sure that they 
are well prepared for adulthood 

Appropriate and effective learning provision provides the environment within 
which our children and young adults can thrive 

Equality Treated respectfully and seen as 
valuable members of society 

An appropriate and effective learning provision demonstrates that we value our 
young people and provide them with a learning environment that will meet their 
needs. 

 
Through consultation with children and young people we know that they want an education that equips them for adulthood, providing them 
with the right skills, aptitudes and real-world experiences that can positively inform and impact upon their ability to achieve their 
aspirations.  
 
During the development of the CYP Plan, we ran two large scale consultation events with children and young people to test their priorities. 
These sessions were grounded in consultation that had taken place over the previous three years, and allowed us to better understand 
both what’s good about Doncaster from a young person’s perspective and the challenges that they continue to face. This marked a step 
change in the way that we work with children and young people, moving from a deficit based approach to an asset based approach – in 
simple terms, we are focussing not on what the matter is, but what matters to them. This engagement culminated with a group of young 
people who had been involved in shaping the Plan running the launch event at the Keepmoat Stadium in May, designing the format and 
structure for the launch and helping to develop a child friendly version of the Plan in the form of a video which was aired at the event.  
 
We understood that to ensure we deliver on our ambition to be the most child friendly borough, we need specific actions for how we 
engage with children and young people, and a clear set of principles to guide this engagement. This allows for the partnership to be 
consistent in its approach to working with young people, and that everyone can be held to account for the extent to which they deliver on 

P
age 27



 

11 | P a g e  
 

our shared ambition. As a result, we developed a Participation & Engagement (P&E) Strategy to sit alongside the CYP Plan, which details 
the journey that we have been on over the course of the previous Plan, how and why our approach has shifted in line with the new Plan, 
and how we will move from consultation to an approach grounded in co-production and advocacy. This strategy was agreed at the 
October meeting of the Children & Families Executive Board and is now in full effect. This approach will inform future iterations of this 
Strategy  
 
Regarding the current strategy, a consultation/engagement event was held with the Doncaster Youth Council as part of the development 
of the first version of the document. Young People welcomed the fact that they were able to express a preference to go to a particular 
school but felt that Home School transport arrangements could be reviewed to better coincide with evolving choice patterns, destinations, 
and points of origin. They also welcomed the fact that a review of post 16 provision was being carried out and that new arrangements for 
vocational education, such as UTC’s, were being actively explored. When asked about the long term improvements they would like to see, 
they could not understand why some areas had Infant and Junior Schools (often next door to each other) that were run as two separate 
establishments while students in other areas had no worries about transition until the age of 11. They identified continuity of experience 
and family cohesion as the aspects that would benefit from a single transition from Primary to Secondary.  

 
6. Demand and Growth 
 

6.1 Responsibilities 
 

a) Early Years: Under the Education Act 2011, the LA has the duty to secure free early years provision for each eligible two year old and 
for every three and four year old in their area. There is also a requirement to secure sufficient childcare places, as is reasonably 
practicable for working parents, parents who are studying and /or training for employment, for children aged 0 to 14 (or up to 18 for 
disabled children). 
 
Sections 6 and 11 require LAs to assess the local childcare market and secure sufficient childcare within their area. The Childcare 
Sufficiency Assessment undertakes a gap analysis to inform forward planning which is based on the supply of places against demand, 
taking into account birth rates and demographic information.  
 
b) Schools: The Local Authority (LA) has a key role in the commissioning of school places and has the statutory duty to ensure that there 
are sufficient school places for children of “statutory age” (Reception to Year 11 for most pupils) who wish to access state education. The 
LA produces a detailed analysis of education need based upon local population trends by age cohort and also derived from the Borough’s 
housing development plans. 
 

P
age 28



 

12 | P a g e  
 

Where a shortfall of places is identified, the LA determines where to provide solutions to address the need for additional places. This can 
be at any publicly funded school, including all Community, Voluntary Aided, Academy, and Free Schools. LA’s thus rely on co-operation 
from individual schools to expand existing provision, as whilst a local authority can direct the expansion of community and voluntary 
controlled schools, it cannot direct others, including academies and free schools. 
 
The LA has a number of learning settings provided and supported by different faiths. It is expected that any changes in faith provision 
would be part of a Local Area Plan, which had been fully consulted upon, or initiated by faith groups themselves. Such developments 
would either be the result of changes in pupil populations, reflecting the demographics of the population or in response to evidence of 
demand. 
 
Every child should have access to a school place within a reasonable travelling distance of their home. Where children are not able to 
access a place at their nearest school the LA has the responsibility to provide suitable transport to the nearest school with capacity, 
resulting in increased pressure on the school transport budget.  
 
c) Post 16: The Local Authority is the commissioner for post 16 provision and has the broad duty to encourage, enable and assist young 
people to participate in education or training. More specifically the LA should secure sufficient suitable education and training provision for 
all young people in their area who are over compulsory school age but under 19 or aged 19 to 25 and for whom an Education, Health and 
Care (EHC) plan is maintained. This is a duty under the Education Act 1996. 
 
To fulfil this, local authorities need to have a strategic overview of the provision available in their area and to identify and resolve gaps in 
provision. 
 
Every young person who reaches the age of 16 or 17 in any given academic year is entitled to an offer of a suitable place, by the end of 
September, to continue in education or training the following year. Local authorities are required to lead the September Guarantee process for 
16 year olds who are educated in their area; and17 year olds who are resident in their area.  

  

P
age 29



 

13 | P a g e  
 

6.2 Doncaster’s Population 
 

The 2011 Census shows that the population of Doncaster was 302,470 and was made up of approximately 51% females and 49% males. 
The population has grown and is projected to grow as shown in the graphs below. 
 
The Census also shows that nearly 18 700 people resident in Doncaster on census day were born outside the UK. Over 7500 residents 
arrived over ten years ago, or 40% of non-UK born Doncaster residents – a little lower than the regional average of 47% Nearly 1300 
people resident in Doncaster arrived during 2010 and 2011; this equates to 7% of the non-UK born population. Most non-UK born 
residents in Doncaster arrived as children or up to the age of 45. 20-24 years was the most common age range on arrival in Doncaster. 
 
Poland is the most common country of birth for non-UK born residents and accounts for 1.6% of the whole population and arrivals from 
other countries in Europe [EU and non-EU] are also significant when combined.  
‘White other’ is the predominant minority ethnic group – a change from ‘Asian’ in 2001 which is now the second largest group  
In 96% of households, all adults have English as a main language – higher than the regional average of 93%. Only in 3% of households 
does nobody have English as a main language  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Data Source: Subnational Population Projections, Local Authorities in England: 25/05/2016 (Office National Statistics) 

1981 1991 2001 2011 2014

Population 290800 291700 286900 302470 304200

270000

275000

280000

285000

290000

295000

300000

305000

310000

Doncaster Population Changes 

P
age 30



 

14 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Data Source http://population.city/united-kingdom/doncaster 

 
6.3 Housing 
 
Future housing development is captured in the Local Development Framework Core Strategy (adopted May 2012) which provides the 
strategic planning policy framework for growth up to 2028 and sets out the level and distribution of development. This includes support for 
18,450 new homes (1,230 dwellings per annum) over the plan period, as well as other land uses. New housing is distributed in 
accordance with a sustainable settlement hierarchy that directs a significant number of new homes to the most sustainable locations in the 
borough, such as the Doncaster Main Urban Area; 6 Principal Towns; and 2 Potential Growth Towns.  
 
Full Council took the decision in Autumn 2014 to commence work on a new Local Plan for the borough which, once adopted, will replace 
the Local Development Framework. The emerging Local Plan, and its associated evidence base such as the Housing Needs Assessment 
(2015), identifies that the borough needs to build 920 net new dwellings per annum, so slightly lower than the Core Strategy target. 
However, the Local Plan is subject to further consultation and Examination and carries no weight at present. Again, growth is directed to a 
sustainable settlement hierarchy, but the proposed approach introduces a larger number of settlements compared to the Core Strategy 
hierarchy, such as the Service Villages, where more modest levels of growth will now be supported.  
 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Population 304200 304482 304919 305359 305881 306438 307001 307547 308076 308570 309017 309419

300000

302000

304000

306000

308000

310000

312000

314000

316000

318000

320000

Doncaster Population Projections 

P
age 31



 

15 | P a g e  
 

As at 1st April 2017, there are planning permissions granted that equate to 9,840 net new homes with the delivery and timing of these 
dependent on market demands. At the time of drafting, annual housing completions (see summary table below) are at an all-time high, 
although housing delivery is cyclical and follows economic trends. The starting point for the new Local Plan and housing site allocations 
will be this supply of planning permissions first and foremost before new sites need to be identified. However, the number and distribution 
of permissions will be insufficient on their own to meet the Local Plan objectively assessed housing need target of 15,640 net new 
dwellings (plan period 2015 – 2032) so ‘new’ sustainable and deliverable/developable housing sites are likely to be required in several 
geographical locations, including the Doncaster Main Urban Area; Conisbrough-Denaby; Mexborough; and, Adwick-le-Street-Woodlands. 
 
Government planning reforms and drive for localism has also seen a significant demand from Town/Parish Councils in the borough 
preparing Neighbourhood Plans, with numerous at various stages of production, including 2 that are now “made” (adopted) and used for 
determining planning applications and form part of the statutory development plan. Some of these plans, such as the emerging Armthorpe 
Neighbourhood Plan which has been through Examination and now carries significant weight, are now making decisions for themselves as 
to the exact location of housing development, in this case the plan identifies 2 housing sites to accommodate up to 800 new dwellings to 
the north of the settlement.  
 
Local projections include information regarding the impact of housing developments in the area where planning permission has been 
granted.  Its inclusion since 2013 continues to be refined each year. From 2013 the LA included housing developments within its 
projections.  At that time, the LA undertook a thorough review of all potential housing developments across the Borough working in 
partnership with colleagues in Planning as part of the Council’s Local Development Framework.  As set out above, this is to be replaced 
by the emerging Local Plan, work on which continues with consideration of the impact on local schools through the Local Plan’s 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Sustainability Appraisal evidence base documents.  
 
The trend in house building in the area has risen significantly as follows in recent years and post-2008 recession: 
 

Year Completions 

2011 - 2012 457 

2012 - 2013 316 

2013 - 2014 654 

2014 - 2015 792 

2015 - 2016 1,170 

2016 - 2017 1,057 

 

P
age 32



 

16 | P a g e  
 

Whilst the Local Plan is being finalised those sites with planning permission continue to be monitored on an annual basis with significant 
increases in houses being proposed/built in the following planning areas:- 
 
Balby 
Hayfield 
Rossington 
Hall Cross 
Hatfield 
Armthorpe 
 
Education provision is considered as part of the infrastructure planning figures here. 
 
The methodology for determining how many pupils each development will generate has resulted in applying a ratio of 3 pupils per year 
group per 100 dwellings. Each housing development is reviewed individually depending on the scale of the development, the type of 
dwellings and the predicted timescales of the development. In accordance with good practice, a 5% error margin is built into the process. 

 
6.4 Business 
 
The cornerstones for developing a suitably skilled workforce are:  

 broad availability of good-quality education as a foundation for future training;  

 a close matching of skills supply to the needs of enterprises and labour markets;  

 enabling workers and enterprises to adjust to changes in technology and markets;  

 and anticipating and preparing for the skills needs of the future. 
 
When applied successfully, this approach nurtures a cycle in which more and better education and training fuels innovation, investment, 
economic diversification and competitiveness, as well as social and occupational mobility. 
 
Good-quality primary and secondary education leading into relevant vocational training and skills development opportunities will prepare 
Doncaster’s future generations for their productive lives, endowing them with the core skills that enable them all to continue learning. 
 
Young women and men looking for their first jobs are better prepared for a smooth transition from school to work as a result. 
Ensuring that every young person has access to effective learning provision generating a wide range of opportunity ensures a high quality 
basic education that gives everyone a basis for the development of their potential, laying the foundation for employability. 

P
age 33



 

17 | P a g e  
 

7. Skills Development 
 

7.1 Education and Skills Commission: 
 
The Independent Commission on Education and Skills in Doncaster in their “One Doncaster” report identified the need for the education 
and skills system in the borough to thrive. The Local Authority will work with strategic Partners, school leaders and governors, national 
agencies and other partners and stakeholders to ensure that the system delivers what is expected and required. The Organisation of 
learning provision Strategy supports the key tenets of the reform programme that tie in with Skills development: 

 
By ensuring that every young person is assured of a positive learning environment in their local context everyone will have every chance 
to take advantage of the opportunities they are given. See Section 9.3 below. 
 
The Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy supports the recommendations of the “One Doncaster” report. 
In January 2017 the Secretary of State announced that Doncaster would be part of the expansion of the Opportunity Areas programme 
which enables local partnerships to be formed to build young people’s knowledge and skills and provide them with the best advice and 
opportunities to enable them to meet the challenges emerging in an area of high deprivation and mobility. The Opportunity Area 
Programme is focused on four priority themes; Building Solid Foundations at primary school; Brilliant Teaching and Leadership for all 
secondary school pupils; No Career Out of Bounds (post-16, careers IAG); and Opportunities Extend to All (aspiration, ambition, character 
and resilience, including the more vulnerable children and those with high rates of exclusions). The Organisation of Learning Provision 
Strategy will dovetail with the emerging Opportunity Area Delivery plan to ensure that all students can access high quality education at 
every stage. 
 
The development of this Strategy for the Organisation of Learning Provision in Doncaster is a key strand of the Strengthening Schools 
section of the Council’s Education and Skills Delivery Plan being driven by the Doncaster Education and Skills Partnership Board. This is 
being monitored and supported through the Board. Business Change Managers have been identified to ensure benefits of the programme 
are realised and translated into business as usual and to ensure service improvement. (See Education and Skills Delivery Plan). 
 

  

P
age 34



 

18 | P a g e  
 

8. Improving Outcomes for Children and Young People 
 

8.1 Environments for Effective T&L 
 
In order to ensure that we have the best possible environments for learning, and that teaching is at its most effective in our settings,  
it is very important that the organisation of provision is locally co-ordinated and that there are Area Plans in place to meet demographic 
change. The Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy provides the context for growth in each area so that coherent school plans can 
be established in advance giving us to time for the partnership work that will provide excellent learning environments rather than meeting 
demographic change through a “bolt on” approach such as those often applied when rapid expansion is required and there is not the time 
for exploration of wider solutions.  
 
By planning for provision within this strategy the opportunity also arises for partnership or pooled funding for building solutions, for full 
needs analysis for commissioning innovative solutions, or for pooling funding so that more beneficial or more holistic proposals can be 
delivered to generate improved environments for learning and thus improve outcomes.  
 
Due attention can also be paid to ensuring that proposals meet basic national and regulatory expectations and guidelines such as those 
set out in Building Bulletin 103 “Area Guidelines for Mainstream Schools” which sets out simple, non-statutory area guidelines for 
mainstream school buildings (part A) and sites (part B) for all age ranges from 3 to 19. Such guidance assists architects, sponsors and 
those involved in creating a design brief for new school buildings, or for school refurbishment or conversion projects. It may also be of 
interest to head teachers, governors and others who need advice on the appropriate amount of space for teaching and learning activities.  
This guidance can be used to estimate the area needed for new schools, as well as the extra building area that may be needed for 
schools increasing in size. 
 
By exploring solutions in a timely fashion we can also ensure that all our settings fulfil a range of expectations that will attract and retain 
excellent teachers and enable them to orchestrate the effective, exciting, and varied activities that will engage all our learners. Such an 
approach enables us to expect all our emerging solutions to include the following:  

 Classrooms that will enable rather than restrict inventive and innovative teaching and learning and will thus support the 
development of engaged young people 

 Environments that are easy to keep clean, well maintained, and attractive. 

 Spaces that meet environmental needs such as warmth, lighting, and comfort. 

 Classrooms that are equipped to satisfy the various rhythms of effective learning, movement, seating density and arrangement etc.  

 Appropriate and easily maintained technologies for learning such as ICT and whiteboards. 

P
age 35



 

19 | P a g e  
 

 Spaces that enable flexible and multiple uses and are adaptable to enable the full variety and styles of required for outstanding 
teaching and learning. 
 

8.2 Local Educational Landscape 
 
There have been changes to the ways schools are supported and these changes have seen the role of the LA change from being a direct 
provider of support to maintained schools to becoming a broker of support with a focus on evaluating the impact that the support has had 
on a school.  The local authority is working closely to develop a strategic partnership with Partners in Learning, (PiL) the Teaching School 
Alliance that centres on Doncaster. A key role for the local authority continues to be to ensure that the overarching organisation of 
Learning Provision matches and supports this thrust towards excellence by ensuring that every child has a place in a learning environment 
that supports outstanding teaching and learning.  
Doncaster is largely unique in that all of its secondary schools are Academies or part of Multi Academy trusts. This shift in the locus of 
control for education has perhaps best been characterised by the introduction of a regional schools commissioner. 
The renewed focus on diverse provision through Free Schools, University Technical Colleges and Studio Schools, is leading to a large 
increase in the range of providers that are responsible for the education and training of children and young people. This requires a 
consultative and collaborative approach to planning for the provision of learning places throughout the Borough. To ensure such a 
collaborative approach to full provision of effective learning places within the Borough is realised, a Learning Provision Organisation Board 
has been established to monitor and support the process. (See Section 15.1) 
 
Although there is an increasingly diverse landscape of designation of learning provision, DMBC holds responsibility for the quality of 
education provision in all settings irrespective of their funding source. We are also accountable for educational opportunities offered to the 
most vulnerable learners. This includes helping to ensure that all settings are in an environment that is fit for purpose and safe. 
 

8.3 School Improvement  
 
8.3i Doncaster’s Vision: All Schools aspiring to be Outstanding - No One Left Behind  
 

The local authority, schools and all professionals involved in education in Doncaster have a clear vision for learning provision in 
Doncaster. We are committed to achieving excellence in education and believe that all children and young people are entitled to be 
educated in successful local schools.  These schools should be good or outstanding, and improving.  The local authority is challenging all 
school leaders, Multi Academy Trust (MAT) leaders and governors to move their schools to outstanding within five years.  It is only by 
accessing outstanding provision do children and young people have the best chance of fulfilling their potential and competing on 
favourable terms with their peers nationally for higher education places at prestigious universities or for high value apprenticeships. 

P
age 36



 

20 | P a g e  
 

 
This is underpinned by our ambition, as set out in the Children and Young people’s Plan, to become the most child friendly borough in the 
country. This ambition is twofold: firstly, to ensure that the provision of direct services in Doncaster, be they related to education, 
employment, leisure or otherwise, are of the highest standard and capable of delivering improved outcomes for children and young 
people; secondly, to ensure that the voice of children and young people is at the heart of what we do, by adopting an approach with spans 
from consultation and engagement through to co-production and advocacy. By combining these two crucial strands of our ambition, we 
believe that this strategy can help to deliver improved social mobility and an education and skills system that is outstanding. 
 
The improvements to the quality of provision in Doncaster schools colleges and settings will lead directly to improved outcomes for 
children and young people at all stages.  This will be reflected in the position of Doncaster in performance tables where, by 2018, 
Doncaster will be at the national average for key outcomes and in the top 25% of Local Authorities the year after.  These improved 
outcomes will not be limited to a narrow range of academic areas but across the whole curriculum.  Children and young people will be 
skilled and enthusiastic learners who are willing to embrace new learning challenges.  Their learning success will not stall at the point of 
transfer to another school, college or into the workplace. 
 
The means to moving forward are set out in the Raising Aspiration and Achievement Plan. 
 
8.3ii Doncaster Raising Aspiration and Achievement Plan 

 
The Plan captures 6 Priorities for raising achievement and the Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy supports these priorities as 
follows: 
 
 

 Strategic Priority Relevance of the Organisation of Learning Provision                                       
(Examples only – not a definitive list) 

1 Improving leadership:  
To reduce by half the number of 
schools that are categorised as 
Schools Causing Concern and to 
improve the LA Ofsted Schools’ profile 

Schools in Categories will reduce as a result of: 

 The schools being located in appropriate positive community contexts  

 Schools being sustainable and having positive group sizes that reflect the 
diversity of the community 

2 Improving leadership: 
To improve the quality of leadership in 
Doncaster schools 

Leadership will improve as a result of: 

 Motivated young people as a result of schools being located in the optimum 
places to meet local demand 

 As a result of the above, schools having a sustainable and secure future so that 

P
age 37



 

21 | P a g e  
 

they enable governors to attract and retain the best leaders available. 

 Effective colocation of phases of provision to facilitate the continuity of learning 
that will develop good leadership and attract good leaders 

3 Improving provision: 
To improve the quality of teaching in 
Doncaster schools 

High quality teaching is sustained when: 

 Good and outstanding teachers are attracted and retained because they feel that 
local provision is well planned and maintained. 

 Learning provision reflects the community and engages with that community in 
both planned and informal ways. 

 Schools and Classes are neither overcrowded nor too small for effective shared 
learning experiences. 

4 Improving provision: 
To improve the behaviour and 
attendance for vulnerable students in 
Doncaster 

Behaviour and attendance for vulnerable children will improve because: 

 The organisation of learning provision ensure that the identified needs of 
vulnerable children are met in line with the SEN and Behaviour Review outcomes 
(See Section 9.4) 

 A judicious blend of mainstream and alternative provision to meet the needs of all 
learners. 

5 Improving provision: 
Curriculum 

Curriculum coverage and delivery is enhanced because: 

 When establishing new schools or modifying existing provision in response to 
changing demand there is an opportunity to redefine each schools learning 
strategy. 

 There is the potential to develop new provision in response to changing teaching 
and learning approaches 

 There is an opportunity to determine new provision in ways that will minimise 
disruptive transitions and maintain continuity of learning. 

6 Improving support: 
To improve the ability and capacity of 
parents and carers and the broader 
community to support children and 
young people achieve in school and 
college 

Parental and carer support for schools will be enhanced because: 

 Learning provision is geographically best placed to enable ready access by 
parents and carers during the learning day and beyond. 

 New provision benefits from an “all through approach” in order to build upon 
relationships established during Early Years. 

  
  

P
age 38



 

22 | P a g e  
 

9. Continuity and Progression 
 

9.1 Resourcing Continuity and “all through” settings 
 
The Council believes that there are clear benefits for student performance and well-being that result from consistency and continuity in 
learning provision. In making proposals for future provision the principles of co-location of learning establishments, campus approaches, 
“all through” arrangements for learning, and the minimisation of the number of transitions through learning phases will be key drivers when 
carrying out any analysis of options. As a result, when considering developments and approaches within each Local Area Plan, the 
Council will seek solutions that capture the benefits of continuity and all age provision in Teaching and Learning. 
 

9.2 Early Year’s Platform 
 
Outcomes for Doncaster children in Early Years Foundation Stage settings continue to improve as below: 
 

Percentage of Children achieving good level of development in Foundation Stage Provision 

LA / Region / England 2013 2014 2015 2016 Change from previous year 

Doncaster 43.30 53.20 65.30 69.70 4.4 

Yorkshire and Humber 50.10 58.70 64.60 67.40 2.8 

Statistical Neighbours 49.29 57.78 64.62 67.74 3.12 

England 51.70 60.40 66.30 69.30 3.0 

 
To maintain and accelerate this improvement, it is essential that the Strategy for the Organisation of Learning Provision in Doncaster 
ensures that there is sufficient high-quality provision for all those requiring it. See Section 
  

9.3 Post 16 settings and provision 
 
Post 16 learning in Doncaster is provided in a range of settings: One Sixth Form College, Doncaster College, and 15 11 -18 Secondary 
Schools. 
 
Following the “One Doncaster” recommendations the Education and Skills Programme Board has commissioned a review of Post 16 
provision to explore Access; Standards and Quality; Progress and Pathways; Curriculum Offer; and Value for Money. Of direct relevance 
to the Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy, the Review is also charged with exploring current post 16 provision and making 

P
age 39



 

23 | P a g e  
 

recommendations relating to future post 16 demand, sufficiency of places over time and geographically, and access to learning both within 
and out of the borough. 
 
The final report (expected March 2018) will include an options appraisal and series of detailed short and medium-term recommendations 
on how Doncaster can seek to strengthen and improve the post-16 educational offer for children and young people in the borough. This 
will include what practical steps can be taken to lay the groundwork for longer term reforms, a clear view of baseline data and insight, 
compare it to regional and national data, identify the characteristics of successful post 16 education, and look at what is required for 
demand-led needs locally. 
 
Clearly the Learning Provision Strategy will be informed by the review going forward. 
 

9.4 SEND and Alternative Provision 
 
The Council has the responsibility to ensure that there are sufficient places to meet the needs of children with individual needs. This 
strategy, therefore, also sets out how the Council ensures there are sufficient numbers of places available in alternative provision, 
including Special Schools and Pupil Referral Units. 
 
Many children will, at some stage in their educational career, experience barriers to or difficulty with their learning. About one fifth of all 
children may be expected to experience longer-term difficulties accessing some part of the academic or social curriculum. The majority of 
children with special educational needs have their needs met by their mainstream school. 
 
For a small minority of children their needs and rate of progress evidence the importance of them having a formal assessment of their 
special educational needs. After this, a proportion of children are provided with a Statement of Special Educational Needs (SEN) or EHCP. 
 
All schools in Doncaster comply with the requirements of the Code of Practice for Special Educational Needs and have a Special 
Educational Needs Policy that details how the school will support children with additional needs 
 
A Statement of Special Educational Needs or ECHP must name the school the child attends, and the procedure followed to amend the 
statement to name a new school are those that are specified in the Code of Practice for SEN. We are required to try, wherever possible, to 
place children in accordance with parental preference if the school requested by parents can meet the child’s needs and the request does 
not compromise the efficient use of resources or the efficient education of other children. In Doncaster, a wide range of educational 
provision is available for children with identified barriers to learning. The requirements of the Code of Practice for Special Educational 

P
age 40



 

24 | P a g e  
 

Needs are implemented, and these ensure that children with Statements of Special Educational Needs or ECHP are not disadvantaged in 
their choice of school at any age. 
 
In 2016, 40% of those with statements/EHC plans attended a special school which is around the National average (4.3%). The number of 
placements in special schools has increased over the years and is at its highest in 2017 (4.3%). The majority of these special school 
placements are in LA maintained special schools (35%) with this proportion considerably higher than the national average. This is 
probably because there are no special academies in the Doncaster area. To account for this, analysis combining Doncaster and 
comparators for maintained special schools and special academies has been undertaken and shows that, the use of state-funded special 
schools is around that of national average, and has decreased over the past three years (4.5%). There are similar proportions of children 
and young people attending non-maintained special schools and independent special schools between 2014 and 2015 (an increase of 
58%), this slowed in 2016 but remains at its highest (4.6%) 
 
Following the SEN reforms in 2014, there has been a significant growth in the number of young people attending a post 16 provision, with 
17% of the total cohort equating to this. 13% of children and young people attend a general further education, higher education or tertiary 
college, this is 4 5 above the national average. There are a slightly higher percentage of young people attending specialist post 16 
institutions in Doncaster than seen nationally (4.2%)  
                                                             
9.4i The Special Needs Review 2017  

In order to establish a clear rationale for future provision, a SEN Review was completed in 2017 and strategic demands have emerged to 
inform and shape the development of capacity, alternative provision, support services, and commissioning. The key principles for the 
development of SEN Learning Provision in Doncaster have been defined within the review as follows: 
 

 Supporting the capacity of mainstream schools to enable them to be more inclusive. 

 Enabling Quality First teaching in every setting 

 Ensuring sufficient quality alternative provision in settings that enable us to meet the needs of individual pupils leading to improved 
outcomes 

 A transparent, accountable, and principled system that enables targeted work and sustainable challenge. 
 
It is likely that the Action Plan meeting these principles and following the Review will require modification of the management of existing 
provision as well as the expansion of provision in line with growth in demand. This will include such things as developing areas in 
mainstream schools where SEN outreach work can be effective, satellite provision, short term provision, and environments within which 
commissioned services can be deployed. 
 

P
age 41



 

25 | P a g e  
 

9.4ii Behaviour Review 2017 

During 2017 a full review of Doncaster’s approach to meeting Behavioural Needs was completed and a management group has been 
established to ensure that the 99 recommendations arising from the review are met. There will be recommendations regarding provision 
that will go forward into the determination of appropriate options that will inform local plans 
 
9.4iii Meeting SEND and Behavioural Needs 

Clearly the Learning Provision Strategy will be informed by and will support the SEND and Behaviour Policies and associated action plans 
going forward. It is important to be certain that the future demand for SEND provision and for meeting Behaviour Needs arising from 
demographic changes are given full consideration when considering the options proposed within each Pyramid’s Local Plan. 
 

9.5 Introduction of Big Picture Learning as Alternative Provision 

 
In addition to absence and exclusions it is also known that young people that are accessing alternative provision due to their behaviour do 
not fare well academically and struggle to progress later in life. Furthermore, due to their limited engagement in learning and the 
environments they grow up in, they are at a higher risk of engaging in risk taking behaviours/anti-social/criminal activity and potentially 
could suffer with low self-esteem/resilience/mental health. 
 
We have applied to Life Chances Fund which seeks to secure a 20% contribution to the proposed Social Impact Bond that would 
introduce Big Picture Learning as a new model of alternative provision in Doncaster with up to 60 places at full capacity. We expect to 
hear whether our application has been successful by January 2018. If we are successful, we anticipate that provision will open in 
September 2018.  
 
 

10. Assessment of Demand for Learning Places 
 

10.1 Demographics 
 
The number of births is the most significant factor for the Borough in determining the number of school places it needs. The birth rate in 
Doncaster was in excess of 4000 per annum through the 1980s.  The 1990s saw a steady annual fall in the birth rate leading to an overall 
decrease of over 1000 births per annum (25%) between 1989/90 and 1999/2000. Birth rates continue to be maintained at their higher 
levels over the last 7 years.   
 

P
age 42



 

26 | P a g e  
 

The current population is gathered regularly form the Health Service and is modified annually by the actual admissions to the reception 
class the respective school - averaged out over a four-year period.  (Two years in areas which have seen a rapid increase in numbers due 
to a large volume of houses being built   
 

10.2 Capacity and Projections 
 
Section 11 of the Childcare Act 2006, subsequently updated within the Early Education and Childcare Statutory Guidance March 2017 
placed a duty on local authorities to manage the childcare market ensuring there are sufficient childcare places to meet the needs of 
working parents and our population in general.  This involves a comparison of supply and demand data and the undertaking of a gap 
analysis to identify areas of unmet demand (parents unable to access suitable childcare provision) whether due to the lack of availability of 
childcare places, costs of childcare, suitable hours of provision or any other pertinent reasons.  Each local authority is then required to 
publish an annual childcare sufficiency assessment.  
 
Projections for Primary Schools were significantly revised for 2015 with GP data being used for the first time.  This data has not been 
available from Health colleagues in 2016 and live birth data has had to be used as a basis for the primary projection data, as the best 
available source. Information Sharing protocol issues and agreements are being pursued by the Council with Health to formalise 
permissions and the release of appropriate GP data in future years. Each child is allocated a primary school catchment area determined 
by their post code. 
 
Secondary school projections use the top year from the primary schools, multiplied by a variable created using historic figures of pupils 
from the catchment Primary schools entering the Secondary schools at Year 7. This therefore takes into account historical migration of 
pupils to enable us to forecast where our Year 6 pupils enter Year 7. This approach is reviewed annually. 
 
Sixth Form projections follow a similar method, by looking at historical migration of Year 11 pupils into Years 12 and 13 we can project 
figures for how many will enter those school years in the forecasted years. A four year historical percentage rate is calculated for each 
school to forecast future student numbers. 
 
In all the above cases, Heads are also asked to comment on their projections in view of their experience and developments within their 
catchment area (e.g. Housing regeneration proposals/progress, significant new housing). 
 

  

P
age 43



 

27 | P a g e  
 

10.3 Pupil Place Planning 
 
a) Early Years 
 
The School Organisation Service collects occupancy data (supply) from childcare providers and schools who provide childcare three times 

per year termly.   The annual parental childcare needs survey (demand) provides and assessment of the needs of families across 

Doncaster.   Both the supply and demand are assessed together as part of a comprehensive gap analysis exercise. Identified gaps form 

part of our action planning and directly inform how we manage the childcare market. Specifications for numbers, access, space, health 

and safety, and safeguarding will be in line with those set out in the statutory framework for the Early Years Foundation Stage. 

b) Schools 
 

The Local Authority (LA) has a key role in the commissioning of school places and has the statutory duty to ensure that there are sufficient 
school places for children of “statutory age” (Reception to Year 11 for most pupils) who wish to access state education. The LA produces a 
detailed analysis of education needs based on demographic population trends by age cohort, factoring in the Borough’s own housing 
development trajectory. The Council plans, organises, and commissions places for all maintained schools in Doncaster in a way that 
supports the raising of standards and manages rising and declining pupil numbers. The Council seeks to fulfil this work in partnership with 
Dioceses, governing bodies, Trusts, head teachers, local communities and other stakeholders. Wherever possible Doncaster Council will 
promote diverse and sustainable communities and minimise reliance on school transport by ensuring that places are provided where the 
demand is rather than seek to fill surplus places elsewhere. 
 
The demand for school places changes over time. This strategy document sets out, in the Local Plans in Section 11 below, where the 
Council believes there will be a need to provide more school places in the future and where there may be a need to provide fewer places. 
Increases in demand can lead to the commissioning of a new school or the expansion of existing schools. Surplus places will also mean 
the reduction of school provision in an area through the rationalisation of school places. Any reviews of school provision carried out by the 
LA involving closure, federation, amalgamation, expansion, or contraction of schools, will be prompted by the methodology for projecting 
the need for school places contained in this document. 
 
Predicting school demand is a challenging and complex task. Determining where children go to school involves a number of interrelated 
considerations and, at times, there can be a conflict between these factors. These factors include migration, responding to local need, 
raising standards, promoting diversity, and ensuring that scarce resources are used efficiently. Many of these factors change over time 
and are also influenced by such things as changing school performance, popularity of schools, government policy, and school funding. 
This Strategy, and the Local Plans within it, is thus a “live document” and will be updated on a regular basis. 

P
age 44



 

28 | P a g e  
 

 
Because schools are at the very heart of their communities, it is essential that they are sustainable and that the Council is open and 
transparent about any issues emerging regarding any potential over or under supply of school places. Rumours about a school’s future 
can be self-fulfilling and can damage the potential for students to thrive. It is essential that we manage expectations regarding school 
organisation proposals that may, or may not, happen. This strategy provides the overview of the likely supply and demand issues that will 
arise. The Council will only make specific school reorganisation recommendations when there is sufficient confidence that the proposal will 
be implemented. This means that the issues will have been explored with the school(s) and key stakeholders in advance, a proposed 
solution discussed, and viability confirmed. 
The Authority has a number of full primary schools for admission in September 2017 and projections through to 2020 indicate significant 
pressures on infant classes in a number of planning areas. Previous years’ expansions have helped to stabilise the level of 
oversubscription particularly in the urban area of Doncaster. The pressure on primary places is driven by birth rates coupled with migration 
into the urban area and significant housing development schemes in specific areas of the Borough. The principal hotspots continue to be 
the Urban area, Hayfield, and Armthorpe. Significant new current and future housing developments in Hayfield, Armthorpe, Edenthorpe, 
Hatfield (DN7), Rossington and Bessacarr present significant pressures. 
 
The secondary sector also mirrors the national trend as the increase in primary school pupil numbers progresses through the secondary 
sector.  Planning in the secondary arena is based upon current capacity assessments and dialogue with Doncaster secondary academies 
will continue to be undertaken to review existing net capacity assessments and evaluate potential expansion options. A key focus for this 
Strategy and of School Organisation work over the next three years will be developing solutions to increasing demand in the secondary 
schools. The overall situation is as follows as we head into the next 4 years:  
 

P
age 45



 

29 | P a g e  
 

 
 
Please note that the above projections do not include the 5% contingency to allow for pupil movement. 
More detailed information by Pyramid and Area is set out below and indicates where there are likely to be the greatest capacity pressures 
over time. 
 
c) Comparative Pyramid Level Data 2017 to 2022 
 

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22

Years R-6 29617 29577 29577 29367 29367

YEAR R-6 CAP 26331 26449 26197 25978 25380

YEARS 7-11 NOR 18340 18340 18340 18340 18340

YEARS 7-11 CAP 15684 16228 16884 17453 17960

Total R-11 NOR 42015 42677 43081 43431 43340

Total R-11 Capacity 47957 47957 47957 47957 47957

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

Current NOR & Pupil Projection's inc Capacity 

P
age 46



 

30 | P a g e  
 

 
 
The gap analysis above has informed the proposal to develop Local Plans (see Section 11) in 3 tranches with plans for those areas with 
more immediate needs being addressed first. 
 
 
 
ii) Comparative Area Level Data 2017 to 2021 
 

CAP NOR Diff CAP NOR Diff CAP NOR Diff CAP NOR Diff

Adwick 1890 1643 247 1050 995 55 1890 1518 372 1050 1087 -37

Armthorpe 1260 1119 141 900 488 412 1050 1156 -106 900 575 325

Balby Carr 2520 2082 438 1050 889 161 2520 2226 294 1050 1149 -99

Campsmount 1320 961 359 750 679 71 1320 816 504 750 779 -29

Conisbrough 1450 1232 218 750 704 46 1450 1167 283 750 785 -35

Danum 2450 2186 264 1400 993 407 2450 2157 293 1400 1152 248

Don Valley 1960 1752 208 1120 878 242 1960 1821 139 1120 1112 8

Edlington 1890 1615 275 1050 797 253 1890 1515 375 1050 938 112

Hall Cross 2170 2074 96 1400 1391 9 2170 2051 119 1400 1712 -312

Hatfield 1750 1424 326 1260 687 573 1750 1380 370 1260 808 452

Hayfield 1120 1159 -39 900 971 -71 1120 1026 94 900 1050 -150

Hungerhill 1680 1666 14 1120 1166 -46 1680 1566 114 1120 1252 -132

Mexborough 1505 1321 184 1120 681 439 1505 1340 165 1120 804 316

Rossington 1220 1020 200 750 666 84 1180 983 197 750 689 61

Ridgewood 1862 1723 139 1200 1179 21 1862 1586 276 1200 1209 -9

McAuley 1820 1752 68 1400 1399 1 1820 1625 195 1400 1588 -188

Thorne 1750 1602 148 1120 1121 -1 1750 1447 303 1120 1271 -151

TOTAL 29617 26331 18340 15684 29367 25380 18340 17960

Pyramid

2017/18 2021/22

Primary Secondary Primary Secondary

P
age 47



 

31 | P a g e  
 

 
 
d) Post 16 
 Pending the outcomes of the post 16 review, current post 16 placements are reflected below: 
 

Post 16 Summary 
Yr 
12 

Yr 
13 

Yr 12-Yr 
13 Total 

In Education 2425 2175 4600 

School Sixth Form 1292 1230 2522 

Sixth Form College 103 67 170 

Further Education 1013 856 1869 

Higher Education 0 8 8 

Full time education - Other 9 0 9 

Special Post-16 Institution 8 14 22 

Employment 548 911 1459 

Training 75 47 122 

NEET Group 171 187 358 

Other (not EET or NEET) 2 1 3 

Current situation not known  43 89 132 

Cohort total 3264 3410 6674 

 

  

CAP 17/18 NOR 17/18 CAP 21/22 NOR 21/22 CAP 17/18 NOR 17/18 CAP 21/22 NOR 21/22

Central 8960 8094 8960 8059 Central 5250 4672 5250 5601

North 7032 6079 7032 5741 North 4120 3731 4120 4187

East 6440 5811 6230 5549 East 4400 3462 4400 3906

South 7145 6347 7145 6031 South 4570 3819 4570 4266

Primary Secondary

P
age 48



 

32 | P a g e  
 

11. Local Area Plans 
 
The map below shows the current School Organisation Pyramids, the location of Secondary Schools, and their relationship with Family 
Hub areas. 

 

P
age 49



 

33 | P a g e  
 

As a fundamental part of the evolution of this Strategy it is envisaged that during 2017 2018 this strategy document will be developed to 
include a web link to a detailed Local Area Plan that will present the data underpinning demand for school places and proposals for 
satisfying that demand in each pyramid in two components as shown in the diagram below: 
 

11a The Pyramid Key Data Report  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

LOCAL AREA PLAN COMPONENT ONE 
(Needs Analysis) 

PYRAMID KEY DATA REPORT 

Context Demographics and Population                                
Ethnicity and Migration                                            
Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 
Working Tax Credits 
Free School Meals 
Birth Data 
Structure of Learning Provision 
Academy Status 
Geographical Map 
Housing Growth and Schools Capacity (SCAP) 
Pupil Admission Numbers and Number on Role 
Capital Projects 

Pupil Places Primary School Projections 
Secondary School Projections 
Childcare Places and Availability 
Childcare Projections for Spring Term 
Local and Borough wide SEND Provision 
Childcare Costs 

Early Education 
Funding 

2 Year Old Early Education Eligibility Criteria and Take Up 
3 and 4 Year Old (Universal Entitlement) Eligibility and Take Up 
30 Hours Free Childcare 

Parent Feedback Overview of the 2017 Survey of Parents Childcare Needs 

Summary Analysis and overview of findings 

P
age 50



 

34 | P a g e  
 

11b The Pyramid Places Proposal & Action Plan:  

 

LOCAL AREA PLAN COMPONENT TWO 
(Commissioning Solution) 

PYRAMID PLACES PROPOSAL & ACTION PLAN 

School Places  

 
Introduction and Summary 
Essential Elements of Place Planning 
Section 106 Developer Contributions 
School Place Planning Potential Solutions 

Options and 
Potential 
Plans 

Potential Solutions, School by School  
Capital Appraisal  
School Pedagogical Considerations 
Pre-Feasibility Estimates 

Childcare 
Places 

Childcare Sufficiency Gap Analysis 
30 Hours Sufficiency of Places  
Sufficiency Action Plan 
Childcare Sustainability and Business Planning 

Summary  Conclusions and Recommendations 

 

  

P
age 51



 

35 | P a g e  
 

11c Local Area Plan 

Each Local Area Plan will be the key document in informing the Council’s proposed capital budgets for the maintenance and provision of 
Learning Settings going forward – See Sections 12 – 14. 
 

 
 
There will be a Web link to each Local Plan that will enable stakeholders to identify quickly local needs and how the Council proposes to 
commission a solution. Local Plans will be developed in 3 tranches during 2017 – 2018 with the areas with greatest and most immediate 
needs being approved by the Learning Provision Organisation Board in March 2018 and the remaining two tranches being approved by 
the end of the Autumn Term 2018. 

P
age 52



 

36 | P a g e  
 

12. Asset Management 
 
Doncaster’s Asset Management Strategy 2017 – 2027 sets out a clear overall vision for the Council’s property portfolio which is “an 
efficient and effective estate which supports the delivery of the strategic objectives set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan”. 
 

12.1 Meeting maintenance priorities in existing schools 
 
Maintenance priorities for the next 3 years for the Council’s maintained schools are based upon condition surveys and maintenance work 
is funded through the School Condition Allocations to the LA and from each individual school’s own budgets. Current priorities and 
expenditure are set out in Section 14. 
 
Capital Condition Programme The LA identifies a programme of works through the annual survey of schools, the programme is revised 
if essential work is identified or issues relating to safeguarding and school closer are a potential consequence. 
The Capital Condition project delivers the planned maintenance programme across maintained community schools i.e. not academies or 
church schools.  The current focus is on mechanical (new heating & water tanks), electrical (mains upgrades and classroom lighting) and 
fabric (windows, external cladding and drainage) Cat A graded (TF Database) works as identified by the Building Inspectors and annual 
scheduled inspections are prioritised by those identified as most at risk of failure leading to school closure.  Alongside the allotted 
programme slots we also from time to time need to respond to urgent works where failure has occurred or is imminent and the risk of 
school closure is high.   
 
The School Roof Programme delivers the replacement or improvement to school roofs identified within the annual surveys.  We have an 
identified programme of works through the annual survey of schools, the programme could change if essential work is identified or issues 
relating to safeguarding and school closer are a potential consequence.  Each year a small number of school roofs in most urgent need of 
repair have been addressed. However many more schools are now experiencing a large number of minor leaks and damaged areas that 
are starting to overlap with each other and the problems are now highlighted in recent site visits as category D, Bad (life expired and/or 
serious risk of imminent failure) and 1, Urgent/immediate requirement (urgent work that will prevent immediate closure of premises and or 
address an immediate high risk to the H & S of occupants and/or remedy a serious breach of legislation). 
Ongoing capital maintenance needs in Academies and Free Schools are funded separately – see 13.1 below. 
 

  

P
age 53



 

37 | P a g e  
 

12.2 Expansion and development of Learning Provision to meet needs identified in Local Plans 
 
Meeting the capital demand for new or modified buildings in response to growth in local areas, is funded through Basic Need Capital 
Funding and through the development of Free Schools as set out in 13.1 below. This funding is added to by building developers through 
the Section 106 arrangements. The Pyramid Place Pressure Analysis within the Local Plan identifies the organisational arrangements 
proposed to meet need in each local area and the associated capital proposal to ensure that the need is accommodated in appropriate 
provision. 
 

12.3 Safeguarding 
 

Within the LA’s Safeguarding of Children Policy, it is important that solutions to pressures on capacity are developed with due attention to 

the health and well-being of all children and young people. All Organisation of Learning Provision proposals within Local Area Plans will 

provide a context within which the LA, schools, and other providers, can fulfil all their safeguarding requirements. 

12.4 Diversity and Equality 

 
Doncaster Council is committed to being a truly inclusive organisation that promotes equality, achievement and diversity.  
Our work is centered on building meaningful, enduring and respectful relationships across different cultures. The Council is committed to 
providing an environment which recognises and values people's differences, capitalises on the strengths that those differences bring to 
the council and supports everyone in maximising their potential to succeed. 
Fundamental to this aim is the belief that everyone has the same rights and will be treated fairly and with respect, irrespective of their 
cultural background, race, religion or belief, disability, gender, sexual orientation, or age. We expect everyone to share and champion 
inclusion, to challenge and eradicate practices and behaviours that are contrary to this aim, and play an active role in ensuring that all 
programme and project participants enjoy equality of opportunity. 
 
All Local Area Plans developed within this Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy will fulfil these expectations through thorough 
options appraisals and associated impact assessments. 
 
Any proposals to change in education provision will also be considered in the light of social and community cohesion both locally and across 

the LA. The Council will consult those directly and indirectly affected by any proposals in order to identify concerns and address them.   

 

  

P
age 54



 

38 | P a g e  
 

13. Capital Funding 
 

13.1 Potential Sources of Capital Funds to meet Local Plans 
 
There are a range of sources of capital funding for schools, reflecting differing objectives and the need for both national and local 
approaches. This capital funding aims: 
 

 to provide more school places both to meet demands and to increase choice; and 

 to improve the condition of existing school buildings. 
 
In 2015-16 the Department spent £4.5 billion on capital funding. Half was spent creating school places either in new or existing schools 
and half on maintaining existing schools. The Department allocates funding to local bodies to build, maintain, refurbish and, sometimes, 
rebuild schools. Most local authorities provide extra funding to help meet their responsibilities to provide sufficient school places and to 
maintain school buildings. The Department manages centrally a programme of school rebuilding under the Priority School Building 
Programme. It also manages the Free Schools Programme. Free Schools are a type of academy that can be set up by people or 
organisations as an alternative to existing local schools. 
 
AS identified in 4.2ii, by exploring opportunities across the sources outlined in the table below, the LA can act as a commissioner and draw 
upon these sources to meet the shortfalls in funding these needs. This partnership and commissioning approach requires considerable 
negotiation with existing and potential providers. The principles for the generation and approval of such solutions are as set out in this 
Strategy. 
. 

 Source of Funding Targeted Activity Commissioning and partnership opportunity? 

1 Capital Basic Need  Providing Buildings to meet demand for school 
places 

Impact can be enhanced by pooling with other sources 
and grants (e.g. those from sporting bodies) 

2 Devolved Formula 
Capital Allocations 
(DFC) 

Direct funding for individual schools rather than 
those managed by LAs or large Multi Academy 
Trusts 

As above 

3 School Condition 
Allocations (SCA) 

To help pay for the maintenance needs of 
existing LA schools 

As above 
Schools should also set aside an amount for this from their 
revenue funding 

4 Condition 
Improvement Fund 
(CIF) 

To help Trusts pay for the maintenance of 
existing Academies and Free Schools 

As above 
Academies should also set aside an amount for this from 
their revenue funding 

P
age 55



 

39 | P a g e  
 

5 Priority Schools 
Build Programme 
(PSBP) 

LA’s and Academies can bid to this centrally 
managed scheme which is designed to replace 
a number of schools in the UK that are in 
extremely bad condition 

There have been two phases of this programme 
announced in May 2012 and May 2014 and no further 
allocations are currently planned. 

6 Free School 
Programme 

When a new Free School is approved the new 
building is funded and project managed for the 
sponsors by the EFA. 
 

Central Government has identified the Free School 
programme as a key element of their approach to meeting 
Basic Need in all authorities alongside the allocations in 1. 

7 University Technical 
College (UTC) 
Funding 

When a new UTC is approved, the new building 
is funded and project managed for the sponsors 
by the EFA. 
 

This programme also part meets Basic Need up to 16. 

8 Section 106 Funding Under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
contributions can be sought from developers 
towards the cost of providing community and 
social infrastructure that has arisen as a result of 
a new development. 

 

9 Other specific one 
off or irregular 
allocations 

E.g. The Safeguarding and Access Provision 
Funds 

Such allocations can frequently be used to complement 
work on other strands. However, they are rarely embedded 
and can’t be relied upon in planning provision. 

    

Notes Condition Funds The results of a national condition survey are 
expected to become available in late 2017 and 
the next round of allocations will be based upon 
this. 

Clearly the findings will inform Maintenance Strategy for 
Maintained Community Schools going forward 

 Curriculum 
Suitability 

There is currently no provision beyond LA’s and 
schools’ “own funds” to support changes in 
buildings in response to changes in curriculum 
priorities. 

Any building adaptations to meet changing T&L 
approaches have to be funded by careful use of other 
funding streams. 

 

 
  

P
age 56



 

40 | P a g e  
 

13.2 Capital Allocations to Doncaster 
 
School Places: 
 

Basic need funding allocated by Government 
 

(Not ring-fenced) 

Targeted 
basic 
need 

funding 
(TBN) 

Total 
basic 
need 

funding 
(inc TBN) 

Basic need funding allocated Total 
basic 
need 

funding 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-15 2015-16 2016-17 
 

2013-15 Total  
2011-17 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-
20 

Total 
2017-20 

Total 
2011-20 

3,609,851 3,017,949 2,664,707 1,732,666 4,612,646 6,497,890 2,135,709 8,220,879 4,379,648 0 12,600,527 34,736,236 

 
 

 

Identified Section 106 Contributions – Signed Agreements 
(Subject to house completions - Ring-fenced) 

11,015,000 

 
School Condition: 

 

School Condition Allowance (Capital Maintenance Grant – Maintained Schools)                                 (Not ring-fenced) 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 (est) 2019/20 (est) 

5,610,567 3,561,747 2,985,603 2,866,952 2,302,001 2, 230,983 1,966,542 1,666,542 1,666,542 
 

  

Basic need places funded through the above allocations 
(Not ring-fenced) 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 Total 2017-20 

789 271 0 1,060 

P
age 57



 

41 | P a g e  
 

14. The Capital Programme 
 
The School Organisation Team manages the capital allocation process and makes recommendations to LPOB for final approval by 

Cabinet. It is important to stress that the Council will exhaust and search for all funding sources as they become available. This will include 

preferential borrowing if appropriate. 

14.1 Current (to 2020/21) 
 
The total Capital Budget for 2017/18 to 2020/21 is £13.6 million including agreed Section 106 contributions. These funds are being used to 
meet growth in the Armthorpe, Hall Cross, Hayfield, Rossington, and Hungerhill Pyramids. 

14.2 Medium Term (beyond 2020/21) 
 
As yet Government has not released any information regarding capital funding beyond 2020. Once known, capital projects will be informed 
by each Pyramid’s Local Plan. The Strategy for Organisation of Learning Provision will drive the Council’s approaches to deploying any 
capital resources allocated by Central Government going forward and will provide the overarching context for bidding for additional 
resources, working with potential partners, and commissioning new learning environments. 
 
Access to Section 106 Developer Funds is subject to the delivery of the sites identified and is not therefore guaranteed but it is very 
important that the Council is able to maximise the amounts raised through this route. The Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy will 
ensure that we have immediate reference to the needs of each Local Area Plan. This will subsequently mean that the Council can very 
quickly make explicit to planners and developers the learning provision contributions that we expect from developers before each project is 
agreed.  
 

  

P
age 58



 

42 | P a g e  
 

15 Leadership and Governance 
 

15.1 The Learning Provision and Organisation Board 
 
The Learning Provision and Organisation Board has been established to improve outcomes for all children by building strong partnerships, 
working effectively together, and providing rigorous and regular performance management.  
The Board’s primary role is to ensure the effective delivery of the Learning Provision and Organisation Strategy. The Board will provide 
strategic direction and challenge for:  
 

 The Review of Education Places including Early Years 

 The Capital Strategy 

 Monitoring the Capital Programme (Delivery & Approval) 

 Establish a protocol for allocation of funds from the safeguarding and access capital provision budget 

 Monitor the allocation of the funds from the safeguarding and access capital provision budget 

 The identification and application of Funding Opportunities 

 School Organisation – Responding positively to national developments such as Academisation 

 Section 106 Capital 

 Partnership Development 

 Working together with Schools 

 Developing appropriate settings for those with Additional Needs 

 Ensuring that appropriate environments are in place for supporting those with Behaviour Needs. 
 

 
 

  

P
age 59



 

43 | P a g e  
 

The Learning Provision and Organisation Board 
 

 

  

P
age 60



 

44 | P a g e  
 

15.2 Operational Leadership Arrangements 
 
The responsibility for the management of the Organisation of Learning Provision in Doncaster rests with the School Organisation team 
within the Commissioning and Business Development strand of the People Directorate.  
 

16. Maintenance and Review of the Strategy 
 

16.1 Methodology 
 
The Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy has been developed during the Autumn term 2017 following extensive visits to settings; 
consideration of the Borough’s other existing and emerging plans; meetings between the School Organisation team and other teams and 
individuals, and reference to other models from other local authorities.  
 
The draft Strategy has been shared with the Learning Provision and Organisation Board and approved by Cabinet on December 12 2017. 
 
It is proposed that the Strategy will be kept under review and scrutiny by the Learning Provision and Organisation Board and will, in turn, 
inform the work of the Education and Skills Programme Board. 

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                            Appendix 1 

 

      

 

 

 

 

EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND 

INCLUSION  

 

DONCASTER METROPLITAN 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Due Regard Statement  

 

 

Learning Provision Organisation Strategy 

How we show due regard to the equality duty in how we develop our 

work and in our decision making. 

 

December 2017 

 

Page 63



 
 

Due Regard Statement  

 

A Due Regard Statement (DRS) is the tool for capturing the evidence to 

demonstrate that due regard has been shown when the council plans and delivers its 

functions. A Due Regard Statement must be completed for all programmes, projects 

and changes to service delivery.  

 A DRS should be initiated at the beginning of the programme, project or 

change to inform project planning  

 

 The DRS runs adjacent to the programme, project or change and is reviewed  

and completed at the relevant points 

 

 Any reports produced needs to reference “Due Regard” in the main body of 

the report and the DRS should be attached as an appendix  

 

 The DRS cannot be fully completed until the programme, project or change is 

delivered.  

 

Page 64



 
 

 

1 Name of the ‘policy’ and 

briefly describe the 

activity being considered 

including aims and 

expected outcomes. This 

will help to determine 

how relevant the ‘policy’ 

is to equality. 

The Council has the responsibility to ensure that every child has a school place. 
The Strategy provides the vision and methodology for ensuring that the Council can fulfil this 
obligation 
The document relates to the approval of a revised Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy  
The Strategy sets out the main challenges that Doncaster faces in meeting demand for learning 
provision over the next 3 - 5 years, as well as the key approaches through which the Council will 
meet this need with high quality learning provision in response to the ongoing analysis of local 
pressures and the changing demand for learning places. This will inform the commissioning of 
Early Years provision, school places, and post 16 development and training and hence help to 
improve educational outcomes and aspirations in Doncaster 
The Authority has school place planning duties under the Education Act 1996. This duty includes: 

 promoting high standards of education and fair access to education; 

 securing sufficient schools in the area; and 

 considering the need to secure provision for children with special education needs.  
The Strategy will assist in ensuring that these responsibilities will be effectively managed and that 
any potential risks are mitigated. 

2 Service area responsible 

for completing this 

statement. 

Education Services: School Organisation 

3 Summary of the 

information considered 

across the protected 

groups. 

 

 

Service users/residents 

 

The Strategy is intended to provide equal opportunities for all children, pupils and students to 

access appropriate and effective learning provision which demonstrates that we value our young 

people and provide them with a learning environment that will meet their needs.In addition to the 

requirements of the Equalities Act, the Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy includes a 

Diversity statement as follows: 

“Doncaster Council is committed to being a truly inclusive organisation that promotes equality, 

achievement and diversity.  

Our work is centered on building meaningful, enduring and respectful relationships across different 

P
age 65



 
 

Doncaster Workforce cultures. The Council is committed to providing an environment which recognises and values 

people's differences, capitalises on the strengths that those differences bring to the council and 

supports everyone in maximising their potential to succeed. 

Fundamental to this aim is the belief that everyone has the same rights and will be treated fairly 
and with respect, irrespective of their cultural background, race, religion or belief, disability, 
gender, sexual orientation, or age. We expect everyone to share and champion inclusion, to 
challenge and eradicate practices and behaviours that are contrary to this aim, and play an active 
role in ensuring that all programme and project participants enjoy equality of opportunity.” 
 
All Local Area Plans developed within this Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy will fulfil 
these expectations through thorough options appraisals and associated impact assessments 
Any proposals to change in education provision will also be considered in the light of social and 
community cohesion both locally and across the LA. The Council will consult all those directly and 
indirectly affected by any proposals in order to identify concerns and address them.   
 
Age– These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected group. 
Disability – These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected group.  
Race – These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected group. 
Gender – These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected group. 
Sexual Orientation – These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected group. 
Religion and Belief – These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected group.  
Maternity and Pregnancy - These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected 
group. 
Gender Reassignment – These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected 
group. 
Marriage & Civil partnership - These arrangements will have no negative impact on this protected 
group. 
 
Within the LA’s Safeguarding of Children Policy, it is important that solutions to pressures on 
capacity are developed with due attention to the health and well-being of all children and young 
people. All Organisation of Learning Provision proposals within Local Area Plans will provide a 
context within which the LA, schools, and other providers, can fulfil all their safeguarding 

P
age 66



 
 

requirements. 
Ensuring that every young person has access to effective learning provision generating a wide 
range of opportunity ensures a high quality basic education that gives everyone a basis for the 
development of their potential, laying the foundation for employability. 

4 Summary of the 

consultation/engagement 

activities 

Discussions have been held with colleagues within Finance, Property and Construction Services, 
Planning, Housing, Regeneration and Environment and Asset Board regarding the need for a 
Strategy and its proposed content. 
Primary, Secondary, and SEND, Headteachers have been consulted either individually or through 
consultative groups. Presentations have been made at and feedback gathered from two Governor 
Forums.  
A very helpful and positive Consultation / Engagement session was held with the Doncaster Youth 
Council on 30 October 2017. Key issues arising from the discussion have already been included in 
the Strategy. 
Everyone consulted was very positive regarding the development of the Strategy.They welcomed 
the fact that there would be a clear statement of principles for the Organisation of Learning 
Provision to ensure that the Council’s response to future population growth was well managed and 
sensitive to local needs and to the needs of particular groups. 

5 Real Consideration: 

Summary of what the 

evidence shows and how 

has it been used 

Consultees welcomed the fact that there would be a clear and transparent strategy within which 
the Council would be fulfilling its statutory responsibility to commission Early Years, School, and 
post 16 provision in a coherent manner so that initial placements will be sound, there will be 
continuity in learning, and outcomes for all stakeholders will improve. 
Effective organisation of learning provision for all learners is informed by this strategy and by all 
associated consultation around the included Local Area Plans. This provides the infrastructure for 
improved education and skills for all people. 
Improved learning outcomes will enable more people to pursue safe, healthy, active and 
independent lives. 

6 Decision Making This Due Regard Statement will be specifically referred to and deliberated within the agenda item 
at Cabinet meeting on 12 December 2017. 
The Mayor and Portfolio holder will be provided with the statement in advance of the Cabinet 
meeting. 

7 Monitoring and Review The Organisation of Learning Provision Strategy is formally overseen by the Learning Provision 
Organisation Board which reports to the Children and Families Education Board through the 

P
age 67



 
 

Achieve Theme Board. The Learning Provision and Organisation Board has been established to 
improve outcomes for all children by building strong partnerships, working effectively together, and 
providing rigorous and regular performance management. 
Progress at a more operational level is covered under the council’s standard performance 
management framework; and is monitored on an on-going basis. 

8 Sign off and approval for 

publication 

Neil McAllister – School Organisation Service Manager 
Learning and Opportunities: Children and Young People 

 

P
age 68



 
   
 

 
Corporate Report Format 
 
 
 
To the Chair and Members of the  
Cabinet 
 
 
PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE REPORT - Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation  
 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision 

 
Cllr Nightingale 
 

 
All 

 
No 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. As part of the Council’s approach to monitoring and evaluating its relationship 

with external organisations and partnerships this report provides details on 
activities undertaken by the following organisations: Yorkshire Purchasing 
Organisation (YPO) 

 
EXEMPT REPORT 
 
2. This is not an exempt report. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3 To note the feedback and comments in respect of the Council’s partnership 

arrangements with YPO. 
 
WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 
 
4. Reviewing the activities of partnerships where the Council or Executive appoints 

representatives helps to ensure alignment with Borough wide priorities, improved 
stewardship of public funds and public confidence that effective controls are in 
place to manage any relevant risks. Effective governance also ensures 
partnerships’ working contributes to the effective and efficient provision of 
services to the Public and the achievement of value for money. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
5. At its meeting on 19th May 2017, the Council agreed that where it made 

appointments to external partnerships, a mechanism should be put in place to 
report back to the Council on the activities of that body in a consistent manner. As 
the Council increasingly works with partners to achieve common objectives 
and/or ensure effective stewardship of public funds this process will demonstrate 
greater transparency and accountability within partnership working. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8.



6.   Attached at Appendix A is a Partnership Governance Template relating to YPO 
this provides Members with an overview of key activities undertaken, any 
significant future activities and any significant governance or other issues.  

 
OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
7.  Without consistent and effective information on their activities, it is more difficult 

for the Council to understand and register the effects of decisions made by 
partnerships and take action where appropriate on any decisions made / 
proposed. The option to do nothing, therefore, misses the opportunity / 
requirement to respond to the ever-growing incidence of partnerships working 
and strengthen the Council’s control framework and its management of risks. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 
 
8.  To regularly report back on the activities of partnerships provides an opportunity 

to strengthen governance arrangements, monitor the effectiveness of those 
arrangements and raise awareness of wider partnership activities.  

 
IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 
 
9. Good partnerships governance has the following impacts on Council priorities 
 
 

 Outcomes Implications  
 All people in Doncaster benefit 

from a thriving and resilient 
economy. 
 

 Mayoral Priority: Creating Jobs 
and Housing 

 Mayoral Priority: Be a strong 
voice for our veterans 

 Mayoral Priority: Protecting 
Doncaster’s vital services 

 

 People live safe, healthy, active 
and independent lives. 
 

 Mayoral Priority: Safeguarding 
our Communities   

 Mayoral Priority: Bringing 
down the cost of living 
 

 

 People in Doncaster benefit from 
a high quality built and natural 
Environment. 
 

 Mayoral Priority: Creating Jobs 
and Housing 

 Mayoral Priority: Safeguarding 
our Communities  

 Mayoral Priority: Bringing 
down the cost of living 

 

 

Page 70



 All families thrive. 
 

 Mayoral Priority: Protecting 
Doncaster’s vital services 

 

 

 Council services are modern and 
value for money. 
 

The provision of robust partnership 
guidance ensures the stewardship of 
public funds. 

 Working with our partners we will 
provide strong leadership and 
governance. 
 

Strengthening partnership working by 
identifying, managing and reducing 
risk in order to enable strategic and 
operational partnerships and achieve 
all Council objectives. 

 
RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
10. Failure to review partnerships’ and key internal groups’ activities exposes the 

Council to risks that can impact on a number of levels as follows: 
 

 Failing to ensure an effective Strategic Fit  

 Failing to identify and address the gaps and shortfalls in Relationships  

 Failing to fully assess and plan for the Organisational Impact the changes will 
have 

 Failing to robustly develop and test the Economic Case for partnership 
working  

 Reputational damage to the Council due to flawed partnerships  

 Conflicts of interest not being managed  

 Damaged relationships with partners. 
 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11. S 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a general power of competence which 

allows local authorities to do anything an individual can do, unless prohibited by 
law (and subject to public law principles).This power allows for the general 
oversight of the external organisation on which Council members and officers sit. 
It is important that where the Authority nominates officers or members to sit on 
external partnerships we have an on-going oversight of the governance standards 
of the partnerships. As a minimum, the partnerships should be aware and have 
polices reflecting the ethical standards of behaviour expected of public 
office holders. 

 
12. It is essential that those the Council appoints to sit on outside bodies understand 

their duties and responsibilities in relation to their position on those bodies and 
the limit of any delegations they may enjoy. Further specific advice should be 
sought if they are in any doubt as to these matters. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
13. There are no specific implications within this report.  Where financial implications 

arise in respect of the arrangements with YPO these are reviewed on a case by 
case basis.  The expected dividend receivable in 2017/18 is £483k. 

 
 

Page 71



HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 
14. There are no specific human resource implications within this report. 
 
 
TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS 
 
15. There are no specific technology implications within this report 
 
 
EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
16. There are no equality implications associates with this report  
 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
17. There are no implications associates with this report  
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
18. Report to Council 19th May 2017: Governance Arrangements: Oversight And 

Transparency Of The Work Of External Partnerships And Council Committees.  
Minutes of YPO meetings  

 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS 
 
 
Holly Wilson 
Interim Head of Procurement  
 

Steve Mawson 
Chief Financial Officer 

& Assistant Director Finance & Performance 
 

 
 

Page 72



APPENDIX A  
PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE – REVIEW OF PARTNERSHIP ACTIVITY 

TEMPLATE AND GUIDANCE NOTES 
 

 
1. NAME OF PARTNER ORGANISATION:  

 
Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation (YPO) 
 

 
2. OBJECTIVES OF THE ORGANISATION 

 
YPO was established in 1974 to fulfil the supplies requirements of a number of 
local authorities. There are 13 founder member authorities (see below) and over 50 
associate member authorities of YPO.   
 
The management of YPO reports to a Management Committee (see Appendix 1 
for the Terms of Reference) of two elected members from each founder member 
authority.  The role of the Management Committee is to develop and monitor the 
strategic direction and performance of YPO. The Management Committee is 
supported by a number of sub-committees, each with a different focus (as detailed 
below):- 
 

The Executive Sub-Committee - has delegated decision making powers and 
focuses on performance;  
The Audit & Scrutiny Sub-Committee - focuses on the probity of processes, 
the detail of YPO strategy and also has the authority to scrutinise the outcomes of 
decisions made;  
The Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) - concerns employee relations. It has a 
different constitution to the Sub-Committee i.e. as it includes representation from 
trade unions as well as councillors; whereas the membership of the sub-
committees is drawn only from those councillors who sit on the Management 
Committee. 
 
Each member authority provides its representatives with access to a Senior Officer 
from that Council to provide advice and guidance to the councillor. Collectively 
these individual officers are known as the Strategic Officers Advisory Group. 
 
The Board of Directors (including an Independent Director) provide assurances to 
the Management Committee and to the associated sub-committees that YPO has 
an effective and challenging strategy and that YPO is well placed to meet those 
challenges. 
 

Associate membership allows for attendance at the public section of all committee 
meetings but do not carry voting rights 
 
The Founder Member Authorities are: 

 Doncaster MBC 

 Barnsley MBC  

 North Yorkshire CC 

 Bolton MBC  

 Rotherham MBC 

 City of Bradford MC  

 St Helens MBC 

Page 73



 MB of Calderdale  

 City of Wakefield MDC 

 Wigan MBC 

 Kirklees MC  

 City of York Council 

 Knowsley MBC 
 

Certain services, including legal, treasury and internal audit, are provided by City of 
Wakefield MDC. 

 
YPO Procurement Holdings began trading in September 2014. 
 
In addition to the provision of goods, YPO pay an annual dividend to Council’s.  In 
2016/17 this is expected to be £483k.    
 

 
3. NAME OF THE COUNCIL’S REPRESENTATIVE(S) APPOINTED TO THE 

ORGANISATION AND THE CAPACITY IN WHICH THEY SERVE: 
 
Cllr Nightingale 
 

 
4. NAME OF COUNCIL’S LEAD OFFICER:  

 
Holly Wilson 
 

 
5. KEY ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN DURING THE PERIOD 2016/17 

 
There was an agreed programme of activities for each Committee in place for 
2016/17, together with a meeting schedule and available training dates. 
 

- YPO experienced a downturn in sales of 3% (due to decrease in school 
spending and Local Authority budgets), this was better than expected 

- Increase of 9 new Associate members to a total of 50  
- Introduction ‘next day delivery’ service 
- Introduction new major framework contracts for food, training for emergency 

services and low energy lighting 
- Placed in the Sunday Times 100 Best Companies to Work for (not-for-profit) 
- Ranked top of the annual Institute of Customer Services (ICS) survey for 

satisfaction 
- Creation of a new role dedicated to growing the Multi-Academy Trust (MAT) 

business opportunities 
- Marketing Campaign to attract the Early Years Sector 

 

 
6. KEY ACTIVITIES EXPECTED TO BE UNDERTAKEN DURING THE  

PERIOD 2017/18 
 

There is an agreed programme of activities for each Committee in place for 
2017/18, together with a meeting schedule and available training dates. 
 

- A new Independent Director, Rob McWilliam, has been appointed at YPO. 

Page 74



- YPO Future Proofing Programme including a management restructure to 
reduce costs and increase efficiency 

- Continue to develop the Procurement Pipeline of Framework Agreements 
- Embed the new 3 Year Strategy 2018 – 2020 (4 Key Themes 1. Market 

Focus 2. New Commercial Activities 3. Financial Resilience 4. Customer 
Focus) 

- New Treasury Management Strategy 
 

 
7. GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

 
YPO has in place various governance policies which detail its approach to 
managing the organisation. YPO report that these policies are reviewed at least 
annually and any changes brought to Management Committee for approval. 
 
During the last 12 months the following policies and protocols have been reviewed 
Retention Policy (Information), Data Protection Policy & Guidance, Information 
Security Incident Reporting, Risk Management Policy & Strategic Framework, 
Assurance Statement 2016, Finance Procedure Rules & Standing Orders. 
 

 
8. ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 

 
The Audited Statement of Accounts for 2016/17 was approved and signed off by 
the Audit & Scrutiny Sub Committee on 19 May 2017. 
 
The net profit is forecasted to be £6.297m, which is £2.166m below budget. 
 

 
9. PLEASE STATE NAME OF RELEVANT DIRECTOR OR ASSISTANT 

DIRECTOR 
Steve Mawson, Chief Financial Officer & Assistant Director Finance & 
Performance 
 

 
10.  DATE:  8th November 2017 

 
 

 
11 DATE OF NEXT SCHEDULED REPORT  
 
Executive Board  27th March 2018 
Cabinet 10th April 2018 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



Appendix B 
 

Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation 
 

Management Committee Terms of Reference 2017/18 
 
Number of Members 
 
Twenty Six Councillors – Two from each Member Authority 
 
Quorum 
 
Member representation from at least five Member Authorities 
 
Substitutes 
 
Two named substitutes from each Member Authority. 
 
Frequency of Meetings 
 
Three times per annum. 
 
Suggested duration: Max 2 hours (10:30am – 12:30pm) 
 
Remit 
 
1. To approve and keep under review a long term plan setting out the strategic 

direction of YPO. 
 
2. To consider, approve and keep under review Standing Orders, Financial 

Procedure Rules and the Officer Delegation Scheme prior to subsequent 
approval by Member Authorities, and to carry out such actions as are required by 
these rules. 

 
3. To provide leadership for Risk Management across YPO and ensure Risk 

Management is used as a strategic and operational tool. 
 

4. To keep under review the method of distributing annual dividends, and decide 
annually on the amount and timing of dividend distribution. 

 
5. To periodically review the membership of YPO. 

 
6. To appoint annually at the Annual General Meeting an Audit & Scrutiny Sub-

Committee and an Executive Sub-Committee, and a Joint Consultative 
Committee and receive minutes or reports from them highlighting any areas that 
require action by the Management Committee. 

 
7. To seek assurances from the sub-committees that YPO is acting with all due care 

and attention. 
 

8.  The Management Committee shall appoint annually an ‘Appointments Committee’ 
with responsibility for the appointment and disciplinary procedures of the Board of 
Directors and appraising the performance of the Managing Director. 

Page 76


	Agenda
	6. Superfast Broadband Phase II Proposal
	i6 cab 121217 - Appendix 1 SBP II

	7. To Approve the Draft Learning Provision Organisation Strategy for Doncaster
	i7 cab 121217 - Appendix - The Organisation of Learning Provision in Doncaster Draft Version 20 301117 (5)
	i7 cab 121217 - Appendix 1 - Due Regard Statement - Learning Provision Organisation Strategy

	8. PARTNERSHIP GOVERNANCE REPORT - Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation

